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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual General Meeting
of the Members of the Singapore Cricket Club will be held at the Clubhouse 

on Thursday, 28 April 2016 at 6.30pm
for the purpose of conducting the following business:

1. To confirm the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on Tuesday, 21 April 2015. 

2. To confirm the Minutes of the Special General Meeting held on Thursday, 12 November 2015. 

3. To receive and, if approved, adopt the Committee’s Report and Audited Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2015.  

4. To elect a President, Deputy President, Chairman of Games Control Board, Finance Member and eight other 
Members of the Committee.

5. To elect Auditors and approve remuneration. 

6. To transact any other business brought forward in accordance with the Rules of the Club.

The Notice of Annual General Meeting will be dispatched to the Members of the Singapore Cricket Club in accordance with 
the provisions of Club Rule 57(a).

By order of the Committee

Adeline Tan
SECRETARY
01 APRIL 2016

Nominations for election to the Committee must be completed on the prescribed form (in accordance with Rule 35) and must 
be received by the Secretary no later than 5.00pm on Wednesday, 20 April 2016.

Registration of Members will commence at 6.00pm on Thursday, 28 April 2016.

Minutes of the 2015 Annual General Meeting as well as Minutes of the Special General Meeting held on Thursday, 12 November 
2015 will be made available to Members upon request by post and/or be available to attending Members at the Annual 
General Meeting on Thursday, 28 April 2016.
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Members of the General Committee 
elected for 2015/2016 were:

President

Capt. Baldev Singh

Deputy President

Mr Brian Teo

Chairman Games Control Board

Mr Richard Stapley-Oh

Finance Member

Mr Parasuram Krishnan

Committee Members

Mr George V. Abraham

Mr Dinakaran S. Appiah (Dino)

Mr Hamish A. Christie

Ms Joyce Foster

Mr Anwar Gaffoor

Mr Paul A. Lawlass

Ms Cynthia E. Robless

Mr Teo Kwang Whee

On behalf of the General Committee, 
it is my honour to present to you the 
Singapore Cricket Club’s Annual 
Report and Financial Statements for 
the year ending 31 December 2015.

I convey my deep appreciation and gratitude to the Members 
of the General Committee (GC) who have over the past term 
demonstrated remarkable commitment in fulfilling their duties 
throughout their term of office in 2014/2015. I would also like 
to commend their efforts in attending to Committee business 
and proceedings of the Club.

On 21 April 2015, 420 Members registered their attendance 
at the Annual General Meeting (AGM). The Club expressed its 
thanks to Mr Mohan J Bhojwani who did not seek re-election 
at this AGM.

PRESIDENT’S REPORT

PRESIDENT’S REPORT

Capt. Baldev giving the acceptance
speech at the AGM upon his appointment
as the new SCC President
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PRESIDENT’S REPORT

Specific objectives and duties detailed in key portfolios 
were delegated to the GC Members preceding the formation 
of various Subcommittees aimed at creating an avenue 
for constructive dialogue for the larger membership base. 
Subcommittee Members were invited from multiple categories 
of membership to work closely with the General Committee 
as well as the Club Management to ensure the smooth and 
efficient day to day operation of the Club. 

The SCC remains rooted in its core objective of striving towards 
becoming the ‘Premier Sports and Social Club in the region’. 
Efforts by the GC as well as Club Management are directed 
towards achieving this vision. Initiatives and strategies at 
optimising the Club’s finances, operations and brand value 
continue to be drawn out, implemented and communicated 
to Members via various platforms such as ‘The Padang’, SCC 
website, e-mail blasts and club notices.

I firmly believe that the crucial cornerstones of an effective 
leadership of the Club are transparency, accountability and 
consensus. Engaging in open communication with Members 
is imperative and I welcome Member’s feedback on issues 
related to the Club and its workings. 

With the commencement of my presidential term, it had come 
to my attention that there is much to be done. The financial 
health of the SCC has been my utmost priority this past year 
to ensure sustainability over the years to come. 

 Capt. Baldev and the SCC General Committee with Minister for Manpower, Mr Lim Swee Say

SCC President, Capt. Baldev 
signs the cheque for the SCC 
‘Aid Appeal’, generously 
donated by SCC Members 
to the Singapore Red Cross 
Society in aid of Nepal
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PRESIDENT’S REPORT

With the general good and best interests of the Club in 
mind, I set out to implement an austerity drive across all 
Subcommittees and Sports Sections with the primary focus 
of restoring the Club’s financial status to ‘break-even’. Several 
areas were identified with the need to scale back on costs 
and minimise wastage. The Club also embarked on an 
organisational restructuring process of the Club Management 
with the purpose of saving on manpower costs.

Moving onwards, I believe in the renewal of leadership for the 
benefit of the Club. Younger minds bringing forth visionary and 
fresh ideas are encouraged to actively participate at the GC 
level to stimulate evolution and progress of the Club.

2015 was indeed a remarkable year with the nation-wide SG50 
celebrations. SCC’s prime location in the heart of the Civic 
District made it a perfect canvas to honour the Nation’s Golden 
Jubilee. An SCC SG50 Task Force was formed to direct a year 
of events and activities which were thoroughly enjoyed by 
Members and guests.

Capt. Baldev with the Societe Generale SCC Rugby 7s Player of the 
Tournament, Rocky Khan (Borneo Eagles) and Mr Pascal Lambert of 
Societe Generale.

Capt. Baldev presenting the champion trophy to the Royal Bangkok Sports Club 
Convenor, Vee Korn, at the Billiards & Snooker Section interport with RBSC.

New Members’ Election Night

In closing, I wish to express my sincere thanks to my fellow 
GC Members, Subcommittee Members, Sports Convenors, 
SCC Management and Staff for their invaluable support and 
efforts over the past year. My heartfelt thanks also to all SCC 
Members for your unwavering confidence in my team and I in 
managing Club matters with efficacy. I look forward to your 
continued patronage at the Club.

Lastly, I wish everyone a successful 2016/2017 term. 

Capt. Baldev Singh
President
Singapore Cricket Club

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB04
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CLUB REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT

CLUB REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT

I am pleased to report that the Clubhouse Redevelopment 
Project is now complete and has come in under budget. This 
is a project that has taken three years to complete from start 
to finish.

The brainchild of the late SCC President, Michael Grice, the 
project took two years in the preparation and planning which 
included a survey of Members as to what improvements they 
would like to see following the moving of the administrative 
offices to the newly acquired premises at Adelphi. The process 
also included two AGMs, two Dialogue Sessions and an 
SGM held on 1 April 2014 where the Members (by a majority) 
‘passed’ a Resolution under the provisions of Rule 37 (a) of 
the Rules to “empower the General Committee (GC) to incur 
expenditure not exceeding S$1.9 million for the purposes of 
redevelopment and/or renovation of the Club premises.”

At the start of the process, Mike created a Development 
Subcommittee (DSC) comprising of George Abraham 
(Chairman of the Property Subcommittee), Ong Chin Leong, 
Suresh Shankar and Matthew Streeton. Following Mike’s 
election to Club President in 2014, Matthew Streeton had 
been asked to take over the DSC Chair.

Following a tender process, Project Managers Ian Lander and 
Catherine Loke were appointed. A Quantity Surveyor was 
also appointed. Designphase Pte Ltd was appointed as our 
designers and 8Build Pte Ltd was appointed main contractor. 
Having Derek MacKenzie and his team at Designphase on 
board was extremely helpful as incomplete records existed 
following the Clubhouse’s major redevelopment in 2005/2006 
in which they were involved.

Work commenced in December 2014 and after many 
challenges – the Clubhouse is an old building and needs care 
and attention – the project is now complete.

The objectives of the redevelopment were to provide:

1. MORE F&B OPTIONS FOR MEMBERS
 This was achieved by providing an additional F&B outlet 

in the form of The Victoria Room and the installation of an 
oven in the Padang Restaurant kitchen. The Victoria Room 
is a multipurpose venue (as are all F&B outlets at the Club) 
to ensure revenue generating opportunities are not missed 
in being able to rent the room out for functions.

2. BIGGER AND BETTER GYM FACILITIES
 This was achieved by relocating the Men’s Changing 

Room which allowed an increase of the Gyms’ floor space 
by 20%. Extra equipment was also purchased.

3. IMPROVED MEN’S CHANGING ROOM FACILITIES
 The Men’s Changing Room revamp included more 

pegs and benches as well as an improved space for the 
changing room attendant and an additional shower stall. 
Extra mirrors were also installed.

4. CREATION OF A MULTIPURPOSE MEETING ROOM
 This was done in the old administrative offices. This 

multipurpose room is now mainly used for committee 
meetings and training sessions. We also installed a ‘hot 
desk’ area for both Members and staff to use. State-of-
the-art audio-visual capabilities were installed to assist 
with presentations.

The Victoria Room 
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5. NEW JACKPOT ROOM
 The creation of a multipurpose meeting room allowed for 

the Jackpot Room to be moved back to the old Committee 
Room which has resulted in increased revenue for the Club. 
The old Jackpot Room was converted into the Victoria 
Room.

6. IMPROVED DISPLAY AREA FOR SALE OF SOUVENIRS
 A much improved souvenir display area was built outside 

the entrance to The Victoria Room.

7. IMPROVED STAFF REST AREAS
 By utilising some of the old administrative offices, we 

were able to provide much improved staff rest areas with 
separate ones for men and women. The installation of new 
lockers provided more capacity for storage of personal 
items and the communal sink and meeting area were 
upgraded as well.

8. CREATION OF THE PADANG LOUNGE
 A new bar and wine chiller serving the Padang Restaurant 

was built. In addition, a lounge area was created so that 
Members could enjoy a pre or post meal beverage or just 
have another quiet area at the Club to relax.

9. NEW MEN’S BAR
 This facility was in sore need of a revamp to meet the 

needs of the Members. The bar was relocated, more tables 
and chairs installed, new snooker scoreboards installed, 
two practice darts boards put in place and state-of-the-
art TVs installed. Finally, a Wi-Fi signal repeater was 
installed. The Men’s Bar is now a truly multipurpose venue 
meeting the needs of the Snooker Section, Darts Section, 
Balut Section, sports watchers, the monthly Quiz Nights, 
increased F&B offering, training opportunities and events 
such as whisky tasting.

10. NEW MANAGEMENT OFFICE
A redeveloped management office was built to allow the 
General Manager, his PA, the F&B team and a couple of other 
key staff to have a permanent office at the Club rather than 
work from the Adelphi Offices.

Work was planned to create minimal disruption to Members 
and to flow around large events. However, challenges were 
encountered that led to unforeseen delays The Clubhouse is 
over 100 years old and such buildings generally need plenty of 
tender loving care.

Here is a list of the issues we faced which were covered by the 
budget without having to appeal to Members for more funds:

WATER DAMAGE

 • The Men’s Bar needed re-waterproofing. This involved 
stripping back the plaster, re-waterproofing, re-
plastering and the using heaters to dry out the walls. 
Being underground, this took time

 • Gym needed re-waterproofing. Same issue as the 
Men’s Bar but the Gym has an underground stream 
under the floor.

 
 • Broken-down pipes and leaking windows outside the 

Victoria Room and Padang Lounge.  Infrared scans 
to assess the amount of water damage, resultant 
treatment and repair following drying-out techniques 
were required. Replacement of heritage downpipes 
which had to be specially made.

CLUB REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT

Padang Lounge BarPadang Landing Lounge
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NEW SUMP PUMPS
Waste water pipes under the Men’s Bar are below the water 
table and sewerage pipes and so require a sump with pumps 
to pump the waste water to the right level. Each sump has two 
pumps – a main and a backup. 

During the renovation, we came across two such sumps in the 
Men’s Bar whereas the plans we were working from only had 
one. There was a pump for the bar in the Men’s Bar – which we 
were looking for – and another one which it transpired serviced 
the Oval kitchen. The latter had only the backup pump working 
and was full of grease. It had not been serviced as no one 
knew it was there. Had the backup pump failed it would have 
been catastrophic for the Oval kitchen.

NEW WOODEN FLOORING 
Upon investigation of the wooden flooring at the Padang 
Lounge in front of the wine chiller and the walkway to the 
Gilmour Room by the toilets, we found that, in 2005/2006, sub-
standard wooden planks and in some cases chipboard had 
been used to complete the flooring which was then covered in 
carpet. Those areas had proper wooden planking installed and 
carpet restored or replaced.

URA
With the Clubhouse being a listed building, any alterations had 
to be approved by the URA. Where necessary, this was done 
and we passed an URA inspection.

CLUB REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT

THANKS
For the past three years, the DSC Members, together with SCC 
Members who were Project Managers and Designers, have 
worked hard to make this project a success. Throughout, we 
worked together with humour and consensus (whatever the 
situation) and regularly briefed and collaborated with Members 
and Staff on progress. We worked with one purpose in mind: 
to realise the Members’ aspiration of an improved Clubhouse.

As always, General Manager Nigel Stearns, and his team were 
closely involved throughout. In particular, special mention 
should be made of Financial Controller Adeline Tan, Head, F&B 
and Events Daljeet Singh, Head, Property & Housekeeping 
Judy Ting and Head, Sports & Recreation Janet Ng.

I should like to offer my thanks for all for their efforts. You 
should be proud of what we have achieved and coming in 
under budget is fantastic. The Club is a better place for this 
investment.

Matthew Streeton
Chairman
Development Subcommittee

Gymnasium, after renovationGymnasium, before renovation

Men’s Bar, before renovation Men’s Bar, after renovation
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President
Capt. Baldev Singh

Deputy President
Brian Teo

Chairman, Games Control Board
Richard Stapley-Oh

Finance Member
Parasuram Krishnan

Committee Members
George V. Abraham

Dinakaran S. Appiah (Dino)
Hamish A. Christie

Joyce Foster
Anwar Gaffoor

Paul A. Lawlass
Cynthia E. Robless
Teo Kwang Whee

Back row/left: Nigel Stearns, Hamish A. Christie, Paul A. Lawlass, Joyce Foster, Cynthia E. Robless, Teo Kwang Whee, Anwar Gaffoor, Dinakaran S. Appiah (Dino). 
Front row/left: Brian Teo, Capt. Baldev Singh, Richard Stapley-Oh, Parasuram Krishnan. Not in photo: George V. Abraham

THE GENERAL COMMITTEE
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General Manager
Nigel Stearns

Executive Secretary
Jill Woo

Financial Controller
Adeline Tan

Head, Sports & Recreation
Janet Ng

Head, Food & Beverage 
Daljeet Singh

Head, Property & Housekeeping
Judy Ting

Acting Head, Human Resource  
Jessica Ng

Acting Head, Sales & Marketing 
Chovin Blix Ong

Front row/left: Adeline Tan, Nigel Stearns, Jill Woo. Back row/left: Jessica Ng, Janet Ng, Daljeet Singh, Chovin Blix Ong, Judy Ting

THE EXECUTIVE STAFF
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2015/2016 was quite a year for the 13 sections of Singapore’s premier sports 
club and it’s been an honour to serve the SCC as its Chairman, Games 
Control Board. With the Padang out of action for most of the year due the 
National Day Parade and the Formula One Night Race, Dempsey Field was 
the home ground for the cricket, rugby and soccer sections.

Dempsey is one of the jewels in the SCC’s crown and it is crucial for the 
development of sports at the SCC, in particular for the development of youth 
sports through the various academies that we retain the facility for future 
years.

Before I turn to the years’ highlights, I wish to congratulate our Hockey 
Section for creating history by winning the Men’s (for the first time in living 
memory) and Women’s League Division 1 titles this year – the first time the 
Section achieved the double win!

The Under 19 girls won their league and the Men’s 2nd XI placed second 
(their highest placing in nine years). The Hockey Section, their Section 
Committee, their coach, Kanan and all SCC hockey players are a credit to 
the SCC and I suspect they are going to be very hard to beat for Section of 
the Year at the 2016 Sports Awards Night!

Chairman
Richard Stapley-Oh

Committee Members
Professor Brian Farrell
John Lewis Taylor
Desmond Decker
T.Q. Lim
Olivia Law
David Jones
Mohietheen Fathima
Richard Loo
K. Rajaram
Sadaf Whiskin
Marc Lansonneur
Scott Starr
Andrea Nicholas
Kevin Cumbers

From left : Owen Monaghan, Wendy Foo, Sadaf Whiskin, Mohietheen Fathima, Richard Stapley-Oh, Thipa Mogan, John Lewis Taylor, T.Q. Lim, David Jones, Stanley Goh, 
K. Rajaram, Sam Sharpe, Marc Lansonneur, Eunicia Tan, Soma Devi, Janet Ng, Ken Ang, Yani Saaban. Not in photo: Professor Brian Farrell, Desmond Decker, Olivia Law, 
Richard Loo, Scott Starr, Andrea Nicholas, Kevin Cumbers.

SUBCOMMITTEE GAMES CONTROL BOARD

GAMES CONTROL BOARD
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SUBCOMMITTEE GAMES CONTROL BOARD

SECTION ACHIEVEMENTS / RESULTS

BALUT SECTION
31st Interclub Balut Tournament 2015
SCC emerged 2nd place.

Other awards: 
 • Overall Individual Aggregate Champion: Kiren Kaur
 • Overall Individual Aggregate Runner-Up: John Lewis 

Taylor
 • Highest Overall Individual Single Game: John Lewis 

Taylor

BILLIARDS & SNOOKER SECTION
Peter Edward Gilchrist represented Singapore with the 
following results:
 • 2015 World Billiards Championship (Point Format)
 • SEA Games 2015 (Refer to SEA Games results below)

John Ewing Cup vs Tanglin Club
SCC won.

BOWLS SECTION
National Pairs 2015 – Ladies
Gold Medal: Shermeen Lim / Chng Ming Lee 

National Triples 2015 – Ladies
Silver Medal: Shermeen Lim / Loh Hui Shan / Chng Ming Li

National Mixed Triples 2015
Runner up: Shermeen Lim / Loh Hui Shan / Chng Ming Li

National Open (9-9-3) Men’s Singles
Champion: Christian Huang

Tanglin Club 150th Anniversary Lawn Bowls Tournament 2015
40 teams from all regions participated in this international 
event. SCC Team 2 (Wong Hui Kai, Melvin Tan, Chng Mingli 
and Shermeen Lim), won the final against Hong Kong Police 
Team 2.

Lawn Bowls Association for the Disabled – President’s 
Challenge Trophy
 • Singles Champion (Mixed): Melvin Tan / Shermeen Lim
 • Pairs Champion: Mary Lim / Edmund Lin, Loh Hui Shan 

/ Chng Ming Li
 • Overall Champion: SCC (Mary Lim, Loh Hui Shan, Chng 

Ming Li, Shermeen Lim, Edmund Lin and Melvin Tan)

South East Asia Lawn Bowls Championship 2015
Men’s Singles & Men’s Doubles Runner up: Melvin Tan

CRICKET SECTION
2015 SCA Club League 
 • Division 1: SCC Lions – 3rd place
 • Division 2: SCC Tigers – 2nd place 

Veterans League 2015 
SCC Sat XI emerged Champions.

Interport Match vs Royal Selangor Club
SCC Sat XI won John Ewing Trophy.

HOCKEY SECTION 
National Hockey League Men’s & Women’s Division 1
SCC Men’s and Ladies’ teams won their respective Division 
1 leagues for 2015. It is the second title in four years for the 
Ladies’ and the Men’s capped off to win the title for the first 
time.

National Hockey Men’s League Division 2 and Women’s 
League Division 2
 • SCC Men’s 2nd XI finished 2nd 
  (highest placing in nine years)
 • SCC Ladies’ 2nd XI finished 4th

SHF Masters Hockey Singapore Championship 2015
SCC emerged 3rd place.

Women’s Premier Liga Tournament 2015
SCC Women’s team once again emerged Champions.

NETBALL SECTION
Netball Energizer League 2015 
SCC Eagles emerged 2nd place in Division 3.

SOCCER SECTION 
 • Cosmoleague 2014/2015 
  SCC 1st XI emerged champions for the League and 

Cup in the Cosmoleague for the seventh consecutive 
year. 

 • National Football League 2015 Division 2 
  SCC NFL was crowned champions. They will be 

promoted Division 1 in the 2016 National Football 
League. 

 • ESPZEN League 2014/2015
  SCC Tigers in 3rd place.

 • HKFC Citibank Soccer 7s Tournament 2015
  SCC emerged Master Plate Runner-up.

RUGBY SECTION
 • Singapore Rugby Union U20 7s 2015
  SCC Colts (U23) brought home the Section’s first 

Champions silverware of the season.

 • Singapore National Rugby League 2015/2016 First Half 
Results

   - Societe Generale SCC 1ST XV: Winners of the 
Singapore Cup 

   - Societe Generale SCC Tankards: Winners of the 
Championship Grand Final

   - Societe Generale SCC Growlers: Runners-up in 
the Conference Grand Final

 • Members representing Singapore at the Asian Rugby 
Championships in Manila, Philippines

  Peter McFeely (Co-Captain), Gabriel Lee, James 
Robertson, Mohammad Suhaimi Amran, Jonathan Kay 
and Simon Etheridge.

SQUASH SECTION
National Squash League 2015
 • SCC emerged Champions in Men’s A and B grade. 
 • Men’s C grade and Ladies Division 1 emerged third.

The Triangular Cup 2015
SCC ranked overall Champions against Madras Cricket Club 
and Calcutta Rackets Club.

Hong Kong Football Club International Squash 3s 2015 
SCC Men’s team emerged Plate runner-up.

Ashes Trophy vs British Club 
SCC won.
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Gauntam Mukerjee Cup (formerly known as Orange Bowl) vs 
Hollandse Club
SCC won.

Interport vs Royal Selangor Club
SCC won.

TENNIS SECTION
STA Inter-Club Singles League 2015 
SCC Men’s A Grade and Ladies’ B Grade teams both emerged 
runners-up.

SEA GAMES 2015 – NOTABLE PERFORMANCES FROM 
SCC MEMBERS
Peter Gilchrist (Billiards & Snooker)
 • Gold Medallist (Singles), Silver Medallist (Doubles)

Vivian Rhamanan (Squash)
 • Gold Medallist (Jumbo Doubles), Silver Medallist (Team)

Bryan Koh (Squash)
 • Silver Medallist (Team), Bronze Medallist (Singles)

Mao Shi Yuan (Squash)
 • Double Bronze Medallist (Singles and Team)

Joannah Yue (Squash)
 • Bronze Medallist (Team)

Emily Chan (Hockey)
 • Bronze Medallist (Team)

Bryan Ng (Rugby 7s)
 • Bronze Medallist (Team)

38TH ANNUAL POT GAMES VS THE TANGLIN CLUB
The SCC hosted the Pot Games and reclaimed the Pot from 
The Tanglin Club after putting up a contingent of strong players 
on 3 October 2015. 

Results
 • Balut:        SCC won 15,314 to TC 14,733
 • Billiards & Snooker:  SCC won 5-4
 • Bowls:        Drew; SCC retained the trophy
 • Bridge:        TC won
 • Cricket:        Drew due to haze; SCC retained 

the Cup
 • Darts:        SCC won 6-3
 • Golf:         Drew due to haze; SCC retained 

the Cup
 • Squash:       SCC won 6-1
 • Tennis:        SCC won 5-3

DARTS INTERSECTION BULL’S EYE TOURNAMENT 2015
The Darts Section organized the Intersection Darts Bull’s Eye 
Tournament on 15 August. 11 teams from various sections, 
including a General Committee team took part. 

Results:
 • 1st Place:  Soccer Section 
 • 2ndPlace:  Squash Section 
 • 3rd Place:  Balut Section

SCC ANNUAL GOLF TOURNAMENT
The SCC Annual Golf Tournament was held on 9 September at 
the Sentosa Golf Club. 

Results:
 • Overall Champion: Allan Muir
 • Men’s A Division Champion: Anthony Hillier
 • Men’s A Division Champion: Eric Teoh
 • Ladies’ Division Champion: Jenny Shah Chin Wah
 • Nearest to Pin: Allan Muir, Andre De Lange, Jullien 

Redy
 • Longest Drive: Anthony Hillier

INTERNATIONAL TOURNAMENTS

7TH SCC INTERNATIONAL SOCCER 6S
31 January & 1 February 2015

Results:

Open Tournament
 • Cup Winner:  SCC Firsts (Singapore)
 • Plate Winner:  Hong Kong FC (Hong Kong)
 • Top Goal Scorer:  Muhd Nurul Islam 
       (Singapore Recreation Club)

Masters Tournament
 • Cup Winner:  CLA All Stars (Singapore)
 • Plate Winner:  Hong Kong FC (Hong Kong)
 • SCC Captains Select emerged Plate Runner-up

Youth Tournament
 • Cup Winner:  Youth Football Home (Thailand)

21ST SCC INTERNATIONAL HOCKEY 6S
28 February to 1 March 2015

Results:

Ladies’ Tournament
 • Cup Winner:  Pink Ladies (Australia)
 • Plate Winner:  Freo Silver (Australia)
 • Bowl Winner:  Singas Slingas (Australia)
 • Ladies’ Player of the Tournament: Catherine Wheeler 

(SCC Golden)

Men’s Tournament
 • Cup Winner:  Fremantle Black (Australia)
 • Plate Winner:  Royal Thai Airforce (Thailand)
 • Bowl Winner:  University Of Western Australia  

     (Australia)
 • Men’s Player of the Tournament: Mohamed Nor Iszuan 

Bin Adon (Fremantle Black, Australia)

SOCIETE GENERALE SCC INTERNATIONAL RUGBY 7S 
(68TH EDITION)
30 October to 1 November 2015

Results:

Main Tournament
 • Ablitt Cup Winner: SARU Sevens Academy (South 

Africa)
 • Shield Winner: France Development Team (France)
 • Plate Winner: PNG Interoil Turagus (Papua New Guinea)
 • Bowl Winner: NS Silverbacks (Australia)
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 • Jug Winner: East Arnhem Rugby (Australia)
 • Player of the Tournament: Rocky Khan 
  (Borneo Eagles, Malaysia)
 • Player of the Final: Mike Te’o 
  (Penguins, United Kingdom)
 • Societe Generale SCC 7s emerged Plate Runner-up

Schools & Colleges Tournament

Len Foster Trophy (U14 Competition) Winner: 
St. Andrew’s School
John Clark Trophy (U16 Competition) Winner:
Tanglin Trust School
Sithawalla Trophy (U19 Competition) Winner: 
Tanglin Trust School

8TH SPORTS AWARDS
15 May 2015
The 8th Annual Sports Awards is, in my view, the highlight 
of the SCC’s calendar, with Members from all our sports 
mingling to celebrate each other’s triumphs for the past year. 
I congratulate the Rugby Section for winning the coveted 
Section of the Year award (and causing the CGCB a terrible 
hangover during the celebrations!).

Results

Section of the Year Rugby

Team of the Year
Societe Generale SCC Growlers 
(Rugby)

Sports Man of the Year Peter Gilchrist (Billiards & Snooker)

Sports Woman of the Year Nilma Missir (Tennis)

Sports Boy of the Year Chua Man Chin (Squash)

Sports Girl of the Year Wee Khee Yen (Tennis)

Sports Feat of the Year Andre De Lange (Cricket)

Sports Initiative of the Year Darts Section

Spirit of Sport (Balut) Geoff Mullet

Spirit of Sport 
(Billiards & Snooker)

Joseph Yip Hon Mon

Spirit of Sport (Bowls) Dr K U Menon

Spirit of Sport (Bridge) Trevor Chapman

Spirit of Sport (Cricket) Hugh Darwell

Spirit of Sport (Darts) Philip Ng

Spirit of Sport (Golf) Peter Salt

Spirit of Sport (Hockey) Sean Chen

Spirit of Sport (Netball) Penny Hands

Spirit of Sport (Rugby) Mike Cosnett

Spirit of Sports (Soccer) Ronnie Smollet

Spirit of Sport (Squash) Zoher Motiwalla

Spirit of Sport (Tennis) Fiona Pilling

PADANG
The Padang was still able to hold the Soccer 6s and Hockey 
6s tournaments prior to the NDP set-up in April, and other 
four major events after the NDP – the Societe Generale SCC 
International Rugby 7s, the Singapore Airlines Singapore 
Grand Prix, the National Gallery Opening Festivals and the 
Standard Chartered Marathon Singapore.

The staff made tremendous efforts to ensure the transitions 
were carried smoothly with Sports Sections, government 
agencies and all parties concerned – not an easy job by any 
means. Our Padang was reinstated to all of its glory by the 
end of October and we look forward to the start of the cricket 
season at the time of writing.

APPRECIATION
Finally, I write to sincerely thank the hundreds of Members 
who volunteer their time to play and organise sports for the 
SCC. The Section convenors, captains, committees and 
coaches put in a huge effort behind the scenes to make SCC 
the premier sports Club in the region.

Of course, without the hard work of the staff – General Manager 
Nigel Stearns; Head of Sports & Recreation Janet Ng; Sports 
Manager (Facilities & Special Projects) Wendy Foo, Assistant 
Sports Marcom Manager Yani Saaban, Sports Executives 
Ken Ang, Thipa Mogan, Stanley Goh, Sports Administrator 
Eunicia Tan, Head Groundsman Rashed Miah and our team of 
hardworking groundsmen and billiard markers – we wouldn’t 
have a sports club at all. Please join me in congratulating the 
staff on a terrific effort in what could only be described as a 
challenging year. 

Richard Stapley-Oh
Chairman
Games Control Board

Cricket at the Padang
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From left: Simon Tay, Doris Ng, Parasuram Krishnan, Adeline Tan, Tom Monahan, Dinakaran S. Appiah (Dino). Not in photo: Hamish A. Christie, Richard Stapley-Oh.

In 2015, Gross Operating Revenue of S$18,856,000 was lower than 2014 by 
S$1,000,000.

The Bottom Line Deficit was S$118,000, compared with a surplus of S$1,583,000 
in 2014. 

OPERATING FINANCIAL POSITION

Operating Revenue

The Operating Revenue of S$18,856,000 for 2015 was S$1,000,000 lower than 
last year. The decrease in Operating Revenue came from Subscription fees, Food 
& Beverage and Sports & Recreation. 

Operating Expenditure

The Operating Expenditure for 2015 was S$20,637,000, which was S$117,000 
lower than 2014. The lower expenditure was mainly due to lower F&B Cost of Sales 
of S$223,000 and lower Sports and Recreation Expenditure excluding manpower 
and depreciation of S$508,000. The resulting decrease in Operating Expenditure 
was partially offset by the higher Property Tax expenses of S$364,000, higher 
manpower costs of S$201,000 and higher Depreciation of S$59,000. 

Operating Deficit

The Operating Deficit of S$1,781,000 for 2015 was S$883,000 higher than last 
year’s Operating Deficit of S$898,000. 

Chairman
Parasuram Krishnan

Committee Members
Hamish A. Christie
Richard Stapley-Oh
Dinakaran S. Appiah (Dino) 
Tom Monahan
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NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) 
After taking into account membership transfer fees of S$923,000, conversion fees of S$553,000 and interest income of S$190,000, 
there was a net deficit of S$118,000 for 2015, compared with a surplus of S$1,583,000 in 2014.

After excluding non-recurring items from Membership and conversion fees as well as the property tax recovery, the comparable 
(deficit) / surplus for 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

 2015 (S$)  2014 (S$) 
Net Bottom line Surplus/(Deficit) for the year  (118,000) 1,583,000 
 
Less Non-Recurring items :    
Ordinary Membership Conversion Fees arising from Conversion Offer (610,000)

Term and Sports Annual Fees and Transfer Fees recognised as 
income following changes in timing of recognition of new members (218,000)

Property Tax Recovery (77,000) (506,000)
    
Comparable Net Bottom line Surplus/(Deficit) for the year (195,000) 249,000 

There is a decline of S$444,000 in the comparable net bottom line mainly due to lower operating revenue of S$933,000 and lower 
comparative non-operating income of S$82,000, partially set-off by lower comparative operating expenses of S$546,000 and 
lower income tax expense of S$25,000.

CLUB’S OPERATING AND NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) YEAR 2006 TO 2015

SUBCOMMITTEE FINANCE
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2015 OPERATING REVENUE ($’000)

OPERATING REVENUE OF $18,856 (‘15) VS $19,856 (‘14)

Social Events

Social Events

1%

Food and Beverage  

Food and Beverage  

$8,615 ('15) VS $9,207 ('14)
46%

Subscription and fees

Subscription and fees

$5,820 ('15) VS $5,947 ('14)
31%

Other Income

Other Income

$875 ('15) VS $900 ('14)

$96 ('15) VS $98 ('14)

4% Car Park fees

Car Park fees

$683 ('15) VS $619 ('14)
3%

Fruit Machines

Fruit Machines

$176 ('15) VS $164 ('14)
1%

Sports and Recreation

Sports and Recreation

$2,591 ('15) VS $2,921 ('14)
14%

2015 OPERATING EXPENDITURE ($’000)

OPERATING EXPENDITURE OF $20,637 (‘15) VS $20,754 (‘14)

Office and Administration
$313 ('15) VS $367 ('14)

1%

General Expenses
$942 ('15) VS $870 ('14)

5%

Property (Maintenance and Tax)
$1,233 ('15) VS $879 ('14)

6%
Depreciation

$2,036 ('15) VS $1,977 ('14)
10%

Management & Other staff
$2,904 ('15) VS $2,872 ('14)

14%

Office and Administration

Sports and RecreationFood and Beverage
General ExpensesProperty (Maintenance and Tax)Depreciation
Management & Other staff

Social Events

Social Events
$385 ('15) VS $427 ('14)

2%

Sports and Recreation
$3,426 ('15) VS $3,940 ('14)

17%

Food and Beverage
$9,398 ('15) VS $9,422 ('14)

45%

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Subscription and Fees
Subscription and fees, one of the Club’s main sources of 
income, decreased by 2% to S$5,820,000 in 2015, mainly due 
to the change in member admission policy in 2014, whereby 
new term membership is now effective upon GC approval 
rather than the subsequent Election Night (S$46,000) and 
lower Absent Fees of S$88,000 due to absent members > 5 
years are exempted from paying absent fees resulting from the 
change in Club Rules. 

Food & Beverage (F&B) 
F&B Revenue decreased by 6% to S$8,615,000 in 2015 mainly 
due to the closure of the Padang field for seven months and 
poor F&B sales during 2015 R7s Tournament. The F&B Cost 
of Sales to Sales Ratio has also increased by 0.4% to 44.1% 
in 2015 mainly due to the sales mix change, rising costs of 
raw materials and more promotional beverages at lower 
gross margins. The resulting Gross Profit decreased by 7% to 
S$4,815,000 in 2015.

Sports & Recreation
Revenue from Sports and Recreation decreased by 11% 
or S$330,000 to S$2,591,000 in 2015, mainly due to lower 
Tournament Income of S$464,000, lower Sports Sections 
income of S$95,000 and lower Sports Membership fees of 
S$105,000. The lower revenues are partially set-off by higher 
field rental income of S$323,000. The lower Tournament 
Income is mainly attributed to T20/20 Cricket Tournament 
not being held in 2015 and lower income from Rugby 7s and 
Soccer 6s Tournament.

Sports and Recreation Expenditure excluding manpower and 
depreciation has decreased by S$508,000 mainly due to lower 
Tournament Expenditure.

Manpower Costs
Due to the tight labour market and tightening of foreign 
manpower, manpower costs increased by S$201,000 over 
last year mainly due to higher salaries and wages, increases in 
Overtime and higher Employer’s CPF which was partially set-
off by the higher wage credits.

Membership Transfer and Conversion Fees
The Membership Transfer Fees decreased from S$1,442,000 
in 2014 to S$923,000 in 2015. The one-off non-recurring 
additional transfer income resulting from the change in 
admission policy in 2014 amounted to S$150,000.

The decrease in Conversion Fees of S$370,000 was due to 
the one-time offer to convert Ordinary Membership to Ordinary 
Transferable Membership and more conversions in 2014. 
The one-off non-recurring additional conversion fee income 
resulting from the offer in 2014 amounted to S$610,000.

Cash Position
As at end of 2015, the Club had cash resources of 
S$17,287,000 compared to S$18,278,000 in 2014, reflecting a 
negative cash out-flow of S$991,000. This negative cash flow 
is after accounting for Depreciation expense of S$2,036,000, 
being a non-cash item. Capital Expenditure S$1,978,000 
mainly attributable to the Clubhouse Renovation amounting to 
S$1,625,000, repainting of the Clubhouse and waterproofing 
at S$45,000, revamp of SCC’s official website/Micros 
equipment/replacement of computers and servers amounting 
to S$63,000, replacement of kitchen equipment at S$44,000, 
other office equipment at S$31,000, construction-in-progress 
amounting to S$129,000 and furniture and fittings at S$23,000 
(2014 - S$725,000).

The Club’s cash reserves need to be enhanced each year so 
that sufficient funds are available for the renewal of the Padang 
lease and for capital projects.

THE YEAR AHEAD
Going forward, the Club continues to face pressures in cost 
increases especially in manpower, Food and Beverage and 
other operating expenses. As such, there will need to be 
continued efforts to focus on improvement in productivity and 
cost controls. 

2016’s operating results is expected to surpass 2015 as 2015 
was affected by the loss of use of the Padang field for seven 
months for the SG50 National Day Parade celebrations.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
I would like to take this opportunity to thank all fellow Members 
of the Finance Subcommittee who selflessly contributed their 
valuable time and expertise during the year.

I would also like to thank the Financial Controller and her team 
for their commitment and continued efforts.

Parasuram Krishnan
Finance Member
Finance Subcommittee
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The Singapore Cricket Club has witnessed yet another challenging year in 
2015 having to cope with the demand for staff and managing staff costs. The 
reduction in the Foreign Worker Quota and the increase in Foreign Worker 
Levies have made the Club focus on the government’s call for ‘Singaporeans 
First’, though with little success. Higher foreign worker levies and higher 
overtime costs incurred to meet increased operational requirements have 
caused manpower costs to rise continuously.

The Club has embarked on new manpower strategies and initiatives such as 
offering job enrichment to staff with potential; employing full-time staff from 
South Korea for the Main Lounge who are highly applauded by our Members 
and enhancing a ready pool of casual workers. These measures have helped 
to overcome manpower shortages and keep manpower costs at reasonable 
levels.

I am pleased to present some key information and highlights of 2015 that 
serve as testimony to the strong policies and the high standards of human 
resource management practices at the Club. 

Chairman

Capt. Baldev Singh

Committee Members

Brian Teo

Dinakaran S. Appiah (Dino)

Harpal Singh

Leonard Thangavelu

Teo Kwang Whee

Front row/left: Teo Kwang Whee, Capt. Baldev Singh, Brian Teo
Back row/left: Leonard Thangavelu, Nigel Stearns, Jessica Ng, Dinakaran S. Appiah (Dino), Harpal Singh

SUBCOMMITTEE ESTABLISHMENT

ESTABLISHMENT SUBCOMMITTEE 
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HEADCOUNT
The year 2014 saw the Club’s total manpower increase by one 
headcount over the previous year (2013) however there was an 
overall reduction of four headcounts in the year of 2015 over 
that of the year 2014.

DEPARTMENT 2014 2015

General Manager’s Office 2 2

Membership Admin 3 2

Membership Sales 1 0

Member Services 6 5

Marketing & Communications 3 2

Admin/IT/Purchasing 7 7

Finance 10 8

Fruit Machine 3 2

Human Resources 3 3

Food & Beverage 89 92

Housekeeping 13 12

Maintenance 7 8

Sports & Recreation 16 16

Total Headcount
(Permanent Full-time)

163 159

Within the Establishment Subcommittee, an SCC 
Organisation Review Task Force was set up to review and 
make recommendations to the General Committee on the 
manpower requirements and the efficient use of the Club’s 
human resources.

The review resulted in a reduction of one headcount each in 
the Membership Admin and Membership Sales Departments 
in the year 2015.  

The Member Services as well as the Marketing & 
Communications Departments saw a reduction of one 
headcount each in 2015 against that of 2014 due to the 
pending replacement of a Member Services Assistant and a 
Marcom Manager.

The Finance and Administration Department comprising 
Finance, Admin, IT, Purchasing and Fruit Machine had three 
fewer headcounts in 2015 due to the pending replacement 
of two Accounts Executives at the close of the year and the 
reduction of one headcount in the Fruit Machine section 
arising from a change in the operational hours of the Club’s 
Jackpot Room.

The Food & Beverage Department closed at three more 
headcounts in 2015 compared to 2014 due to an increase 
of personnel in the kitchen and service teams as a result of 
greater operational requirements. 

The Property & Housekeeping (Housekeeping and 
Maintenance) and Sports & Recreation Departments have 
maintained a headcount of 20 and 16 respectively for both 
years.  

With an aim to amalgamate the sales functions of the Club, 
a new Sales & Marketing Department was formed effective 1 
January 2016 to handle Membership Sales; Banquet & Events 
Sales; and Marketing & Communications. I am pleased to 
inform that the restructuring has rationalised manpower costs 
and brought some savings to the Club.

MANPOWER TURNOVER
It is worth noting that the Club’s average monthly staff turnover 
rate for the year 2015 has been maintained at a healthy range 
of less than two percent which clearly shows that the Club’s 
employee retention policy has made a positive impact.

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS
In order to retain good employees, the Club constantly strives 
to maintain its competitiveness in terms of compensation and 
benefits which includes both monetary and non-monetary 
rewards and recognitions.

I take this opportunity to thank all SCC Members who have 
contributed to the Staff Ang Pow Fund which was distributed 
to SCC Staff as an appreciation of their hard work and 
dedication.

To encourage a healthy lifestyle, the Club awards a tiered 
Stay-Fit Incentive to employees who have taken an aggregate 
of no more than seven days of sick leave or no pay leave 
in a calendar year, ranging from S$100.00 to S$500.00 for 
employees with zero such leaves taken.

In celebration of Singapore’s Golden Jubilee and to show 
the Club’s appreciation of the support of SCC Staff, the Club 
presented a token of appreciation of S$50.00 NTUC vouchers 
to each staff as part of the SCC SG50 initiatives.

The Club strongly believes that happy and healthy employees 
will work happily, be more productive and in turn make our 
Members happy with their impeccable service.

CNY Lohei
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Long Service Award recipients 2015

Birthday & Christmas celebration in December

New staff rest roomOrganising Committee of SCC Staff Party 2015

STAFF WELFARE
The staff rest area has been renovated as part of the Club’s 
redevelopment project to improve the staff facilities with new 
beds, new lockers, new furniture, a new television set and 
two new vending machines for hot/cold drinks and snacks. A 
separate rest area has also been created for female employees 
for enhanced privacy. All employees share the common area 
where they can interact over a meal or relax over their favourite 
television programmes during their rest periods.

Monthly staff events are held at the Club to celebrate the 
birthdays of employees and awards such as the Honesty Award 
and Long Service Award presented to deserving employees.

Following three memorable Staff Parties held outside the 
Club’s premises since 2012, the Club organised yet another 
superb Staff Party at the InterContinental Hotel Singapore in 
April 2015 themed ‘Around the World’. The staff immersed 
themselves in the ambience and hospitality of the hotel and 
were also treated to a well-deserved night of fun and games, 

rousing entertainment by the staff and emcee, a scrumptious 
buffet spread, as well as lucky draw prizes that were specially 
arranged for them in appreciation of their hard work and 
dedication to the Club.

Besides the Annual Staff Party, a Staff Christmas Party was 
also organised by the Club for its employees at its premises to 
share the joy of the season during which staff enjoyed a variety 
of food, fun games and a mini lucky draw.
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Participants with trainer of staff training workshop

EXSA recipients

EXCELLENT SERVICE AWARD
Launched in 1994, the Excellent Service Award (EXSA) 
is a national award that recognises individuals who have 
demonstrated exemplary qualities of service professionalism. 
It seeks to develop service models for staff to emulate, create 
service champions, lift service standards and raise the prestige 
of a career in the service industry. 

For the second time in the Club’s history, the Club nominated 
15 deserving staff for a total of eight Gold and seven Silver 
Excellent Service Awards (EXSA). The award recipients were 
commended for their outstanding service to the Club and were 
presented their award at a special reception in December 2015.  

STAFF TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
With an aim to enhance staff service knowledge, the Club 
conducted a three-part course on ‘Roadmap to the Art of 
Service Excellence’ in the following modules:

 • Part 1 – Delivering the Art of Service Excellence 
 • Part 2 – The Art of Handling Customers Effectively 
 • Part 3 – Delivering a 6-STAR Service to Customers

The course was well-received by the participants who had 
unanimously agreed that the training had enhanced their 
knowledge and given them insights on how to deliver better 
service to SCC Members. Most of all, the team bonded through 
the training which would certainly add to better working 
relationships.

In addition, some employees were trained for Occupational 
First Aid as part of the Club’s workplace health and safety 
programme.

CONCLUSION
I would like to thank the General Committee, Members of the 
Establishment Subcommittee and the Management Team for 
their unstinting support, as well as to the SCC Staff for their 
continued hard work and dedication.  

It is heartening to know that the Club has a team of unrelenting 
employees who strive to maintain the Club’s premier status 
and I congratulate you all on a job well done!  Thank you!

Capt. Baldev Singh 
Chairman
Establishment Subcommittee
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I am most pleased to report that the SCC’s Food & Beverage (F&B) 
Department has yet again delivered a productive and successful year of 
operations across all F&B outlets despite the usual and ongoing ‘industry 
sector’ challenges that have significantly and historically impacted our 
bottom-line. 

However together with challenges come opportunities and to this end, new 
initiatives have been tasted, tested and introduced at our seven outlets. New 
ideas continue to be formulated and will subsequently be implemented as 
we continue to grow and evolve the Club’s F&B branding.

We have increased revenue in 2015 whilst maintaining the current prices and 
quality of our F&B products and services. This, I believe, demonstrates the 
value for money that we offer.

Chairman

Dinakaran S. Appiah (Dino)

Committee Members

Anthony Richardson

Joyce Foster

Jude Tan

Capt. Robin Thomas

Sammy Soon

FOOD & BEVERAGE SUBCOMMITTEE

Front row/ left: Sally Heng, Anthony Richardson, Capt. Robin Thomas, Dinakaran S. Appiah (Dino), Sammy Soon, Daljeet Singh.
Back row/ left: Raymond Lee, Jude Tan, Nigel Stearns, Chovin Blix Ong. Not in Photo: Joyce Foster

SUBCOMMITTEE FOOD & BEVERAGE
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NEW FOOD INITIATIVES
A revamp of the Oval Restaurant menu was implemented 
offering more variety of dishes like South Indian Fish Curry, 
Baingan Bharat and Bhindi Do Pyaza. Chef Arfin’s specials 
like Indian Rojak and Murtabak are now available daily. The 
favourite local specialities like Chicken Rice and Biryani are 
now available three times a week due to its popularity amongst 
Members.

BARS
The Men’s Bar underwent a renovation early this year and 
introduced an elegant new bar with more tables for Members 
to entertain their guests. Special promotions on spirits and 
wines were introduced. Whisky tasting of Balvenie Single Malt 
and sake tasting were featured to promote the new Men’s Bar. 

The bi-monthly beverage promotions featured fine wines from 
Argentina, Chile, Australia, New Zealand, France and Italy are 
offered by the glass. This has given Members an opportunity to 
taste these varietal wines. Similarly, our beverage promotions 
featured single malt whiskies, rums, vodkas and other spirit 
varieties.

RESTAURANTS
The Padang Restaurant continues to enjoy loyal support of 
its three-course Executive Set Lunch menu that changes bi-
monthly. Members are encouraged to savour these delectable 
dishes and the restaurant’s signature dish of Angus Prime Rib 
from the wagon. The Padang Restaurant Bar was renovated 
mid-year and now has a new wine cellar showcasing fine 
wines with a nice seating area where Members can enjoy a 
pre-dinner drink or cocktail before their meal.

Wine dinners offered during the year featured renowned Sileni 
Winery of Hawkes Bay New Zealand, the largest Argentinean 
wine producer, Grupo Penaflor, Stella Bella winery of Margaret 
River Western Australia and Italian wines from Tenuta di Sesta 
Montalcino pairing with the menu created by our guest Chef 
Mimmo Piccoli. Our wine dinners continue to be fully booked 
by Members.

Chef Arfin

The Oval & Verandah continues to offer a full range of SCC 
signature dishes as well as a wide variety of local and western 
specials such as Claypot Fish Head, Tandoori Lamb Chop and 
Teriyaki Norwegian Salmon Fillet, thereby offering Members a 
significant range of choices – not only in flavours and spices 
but also a variety of meats, fish and fowl.

Our Friday fortnightly Hawker Fare at the Courtyard has 
become a firm favourite on balmy evenings for Members, their 
families and friends. Favourites such as Satay, Mee Goreng, 
Oyster Omelette, Chinese Rojak and Chendol as well as Chef 
Arfin’s much sought-after specialty dishes of Soup Kambing, 
Soto Ayam, Indian Mee Goreng and Rojak as well as varieties 
of Roti Prata and Thosai. 

TRAINING
The F&B Subcommittee works together with the SCC 
Management to emphasise on staff training which remains as 
an important area of focus and we will 
continue to invest in these trainings in 
aid of the development of our staffs’ 
skills which ultimately uplifts the 
overall service quality of the Club. In 
pursuing this, regular trainings have 
been conducted on a monthly basis 
by the respective outlet managers for 
all staff while managers and executives 
attended professional training courses 
conducted by external professionals 
and institutions. Our F&B staff 
received gold and silver awards 
for service achievements by the 
Singapore Hotel Association.

The new Men’s Bar Hawker fare during the SG50 Celebrations
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Dinner Special, Roasted Rosemary Spring Chicken SCC Chicken Rice

BANQUET
With the wonderful selection of F&B and stunning views from 
the Gilmour Room & Terrace, our banquet services remained 
abuzz throughout the year with Members’ social, corporate 
and private events. The Victoria Room is now available as an 
extra optional venue for small events or gatherings.

GOOD HYGIENE PRACTICES
The F&B Department places high priority in ensuring that 
we diligently strive to maintain the highest standard of food 
hygiene and sanitation in our kitchens. Our F&B outlets have 
been awarded an ‘A’ Grade by the National Environmental 
Agency.

A group of selected staff also attended a food hygiene course 
specifically for food handlers conducted by the Institute of 
Technical Education. The Subcommittee will continue to 
supervise and monitor our food preparation and food handling 
procedures as well as matters relating to personal hygiene.

FINANCIALS
In line with other clubs and hospitality industry-based 
businesses, the SCC is not immune from rising costs of raw 
food materials and new policies and levies implemented by 
the Ministry of Manpower on foreign F&B staff and S-Pass 
holders.
 
Further to this, we had some unforeseen circumstances which 
added adversely to our income i.e. road closures (PM State 
Funeral, National Day and the Night Race), the haze and the 
closure of the Padang field. The Men’s Bar was closed over 
a period of three months for renovations which affected our 
sales revenue greatly in spite of our prudent efforts.
 

The F&B Sales Revenue was S$8,615,360 in 2015 as 
compared to last year’s S$9,207,022, a shortfall of S$591,682. 
The F&B Cost of Sales as a percentage of Revenue increased 
marginally by 0.4% to 44.1% in 2015 despite market rising 
costs for raw materials.

CONCLUSION
In closing, I am pleased to have this opportunity to convey my 
sincere appreciation to the Members of the F&B Subcommittee 
for their time and significant contributions to the successes of 
this past year. I further express my sincere appreciation to all 
F&B Department staff led by Mr Daljeet Singh and Executive 
Chef Raymond Lee. 

Finally, I thank Members for their support and kind words to our 
F&B Staff and Management. Your feedback and comments are 
important to us and you can be assured that we will continue 
to strive to offer the best food, beverages and highest service 
quality possible as well as ‘value-for-money’ for Members to 
enjoy.

Dinakaran S. Appiah (Dino)
Chairman
Food & Beverage Subcommittee
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MARKETING & COMMUNICATIONS

From left  : Nigel Stearns, Adeline Tan, Cynthia E. Robless, Anwar Gaffoor, Tracy Jones. Not in photo : Paul Lawlass, Srikanth K. V.

The Marketing & Communications Subcommittee (MCS) plays a key role in 
engaging Members and keeping them abreast of the latest Club news. The 
MCS further plays a significant role in supporting and promoting membership 
sales. 

Keeping the varied interests of Members in mind, the Subcommittee also 
endeavours to develop and produce exclusive SCC merchandise to add 
to our growing selection which is available for sale through the Member 
Services Desk.

Chairlady

Cynthia E. Robless

Committee Members

Anwar Gaffoor

Paul Lawlass

Srikanth K. V.

Tracy Jones
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‘THE PADANG’ MAGAZINE  
‘The Padang’ magazine serves as 
a record of events and activities 
within the Club as well as keeping 
Members updated on current and 
upcoming social events, the latest 
Food & Beverage promotions and 
news from our 13 Sports Sections.

Article contributions from our own 
Members including Chairman, 
Games Control Board, Mr. Richard 
Stapley-Oh and SCC Members Mr. 
Steve Thompson, Dr. K. U. Menon, 
Mr. A. Purushothaman and Mr. 
Lim Chen Sian have significantly 
enriched the editorial content of 
the publication this past year and 
it would be remiss of me if I do not 
express my sincere gratitude to 
them for their invaluable support of 
the magazine.

2015 marked the Nation’s Golden 
Jubilee with all six issues of the 
magazine featuring SG50-themed 
covers to reflect the milestone 
observance of our country’s 
independence.

While preserving the quality 
of content and quality of the 
publication, ‘The Padang’ is critically reviewed on an ongoing 
basis for further improvement and fresh design ideas to keep 
Members engaged. Efforts have also been made to further 
‘refine’ the presentation of new Food & Beverage promotions 
that showcase the signature dishes of our talented chefs. 

The Subcommittee is pleased to report a moderate increase 
in the publication’s advertising revenue this past year, with the 
aim of building upon this upward trend into 2016.

SCC E-NEWS
The SCC’s E-News service that features current Club-related 
updates and developments is circulated three times weekly 
to Members on Mondays, Tuesdays and Thursdays.  This is a 
further platform for Members to obtain updated information on 
matters of immediate Member interest.

SCC WEBSITE REVAMP
Following months of strategic evaluation and refinement 
of technical details, Members are now able to access the 
Club’s news and happenings at the revamped SCC website 
(www.scc.org.sg). 

Exclusive to Members, the SCC E-Services portal is also 
available at the website for the convenience of online bookings 
of Club facilities.  The improved website now sports a more 
user-friendly interface making it easier to navigate for an 
additional and effective communication platform between the 
Club and its Members. The SCC re-vamped website
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SCC MOBILE APPLICATION
The Mobile Application project was conceived 
with the aim of seamlessly connecting our 
Members with the Club on a digital platform 
that could be conveniently accessed anywhere 
and at any time. 

User testing has been conducted over the 
preceding months to ensure the application 
can be navigated with ease and we hope to 
roll-out the App in 2016.
 
COMMEMORATION OF SG50 
Singapore’s year-long Golden Jubilee 
celebrations were observed by the SCC in 
various ways throughout 2015. 

An exclusive SCC SG50 Club logo which was 
a collaborative design effort with the Marcom 
Department used on various marketing 
collaterals and limited edition merchandise, 
such as the SCC SG50 polo t-shirts and caps, 
were well-received and positively commented 
upon by our Members.

REFURBISHMENT OF THE MAIN LOUNGE 
CABINETS
The standing glass cabinets located at either 
exits leading out onto the Oval and Deli 
Verandahs had been given a fresh makeover 
and now house materials of considerable 
significance. 

The display cabinet nearest the Oval Verandah 
pays a handsome tribute to SCC’s first 
‘Visitor’ and the nation’s founding father – 
Mr. Lee Kuan Yew. 

In it lies the transcript of the speech delivered 
by Mr. Lee during a dinner at the Gilmour Room 
which would be etched in the memories of 
those present and would continue to resonate 
with Members of the Club today. 

The cabinet at the opposite end honours eight 
of SCC’s rugby players who had perished in 
the tragic Bali bombing on 12 October 2002. 
The marble slab bears the tattoo that some of 
the Rugby players have got on them in memory 
of their departed rugby mates. 
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Souvenir sales at the SCC Night Race Fiesta

SCC Wine Opener and Card Holder

The new Souvenir Shop

SOUVENIR SALES
The SCC boasts an extensive selection of merchandise 
exclusively for Members and we are pleased to report average 
sales of $6,385 per month in 2015. Periodical sales were also 
offered for our Member’s purchasing satisfaction. 

This year several new items were introduced. Wine opener 
sets were re-introduced and have been in steady demand 
since. Members are now also able to purchase new SCC polo 
t-shirts in classic SCC colours.

Along with many areas of the Club, the souvenir shop has been 
given a face-lift and it now boasts a display area showcasing 
all SCC merchandise available for sale through the Member 
Services Desk.

FORMATION OF SALES & MARKETING TEAM
The Sales & Marketing Department was formed in January 
2016 resulting from the assessment of the Organization 
Review Task Force. The aim was to have a centralised Sales & 
Marketing arm of the Club.

Taking over from Ms. Adeline Tan, Financial Controller,  
Ms. Chovin Ong was appointed Acting Head of this new 
department.

CLOSING
In closing, I would like to take this opportunity to convey my 
personal and very sincere gratitude to Anwar Gaffoor (our 
volunteer proof reader), Paul Lawlass, Srikanth K.V., Tracy 
Jones, as well as our scribes from the Sport Sections and all 
contributors of articles to ‘The Padang’. 

My thanks also to General Manager, Nigel Stearns, the Club 
Management and staff for their time, effort and dedication in 
the planning, organising and executing of the Club’s continued 
Marketing and Communication strategies.

Cynthia E. Robless
Chairlady
Marketing & Communications 
Subcommittee



SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB28
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From left  : Norliah Soeyoeti, Judy Ting, T. Velu, George V. Abraham, Anwar Gaffoor, Retna Sabapathy
Not in photo : Ong Chin Leong, Andrew Anthony Moore, Matthew Streeton

Throughout the year, the Property Subcommittee has ensured all facilities 
are well-maintained and in tip-top condition through improvements, 
replacements and repairs. Over the course of the year, several new initiatives 
were undertaken to enhance and upgrade the facilities so that Members 
and their guests are better served. A Development Steering Committee was 
formed to conceptualise new designs for the facilities to be refurbished and 
also to oversee the extensive Clubhouse renovation project. 

This year the Club embarked on an extensive programme of refurbishment. 
The men’s changing room had a facelift along with an additional shower 
room to ease the demand for shower facility. Lighting and layout of the room 
was also improved. Renovation to the lower first storey of the Clubhouse 
included the gym, management offices and the Men’s Bar. 

In addition to expanding the gym, a floor to ceiling mirror was also added. 
The newly refurbished Men’s Bar now has a stylish and fully equipped bar. 
More furniture was added to provide additional seating capacity to cater for 
an increased patronage to the outlet. Air conditioning improvement works 
were also carried out. The Jackpot Room was closed and relocated to the 
existing Committee Room and the vacated space was refurbished as a food 
& beverage outlet, now known as The Victoria Room. 

Chairman

George V. Abraham

Committee Members

Andrew Anthony Moore

Anwar Gaffoor

Matthew Streeton

Ong Chin Leong

Retna Sabapathy

T. Velu

SUBCOMMITTEE PROPERTY
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We encountered challenges during the refurbishment works 
that needed to be addressed and rectified which resulted in 
delay of the completion of works. Although some form of noise 
and dust were unavoidable, the development project was 
completed with minimum disruptions to ensure a comfortable 
and pleasant environment for all. I am very thankful for the kind 
patience and understanding of our Members.

After the renovation, new SMART TV sets were acquired for the 
Gym and Men’s Bar and a Bose sound system was installed 
at The Victoria Room. Following feedback from its patrons, 
an additional air conditioning unit was installed at the newly 
renovated Jackpot Room which is now much cooler and offers 
a more pleasant environment for Members.   

In preparation for the SG50 celebrations, the building was 
given a fresh coat of paint in grey hues which complements 
its heritage and highlights the features of the building. The re-
painting of the front façade commenced on 15 June 2015 and 
was completed in time for the National Day celebration.  The 
Clubhouse was also decked in SG50 themed decorations for 
the year-long celebrations.

Apart from the main works, other works were carried out as 
follows: 

 • Replacement of carpet tiles in The Oval Restaurant
 • Replacement of cantilever at the carpark which was  

damaged by strong winds
 • Installation of additional fan coil units to the new 

administrative office 
 • Replacement of projector at Stumps 
 • Replacement of ejector sump pumps at the carpark 

and for the Men’s Bar 
 • Replacement of bifurcated exhaust fan at the Oval 

kitchen
 • Replacement of multi-metering meter in the main  

switchboard and chiller plant switch board
 • Replacement of corroded GI waste pipe from the store 

to the ceiling at the Men’s Bar
 • Acquisition of new water cooler for the Gym 
 • Fabrication of new lectern for the Padang Restaurant
 • Fabrication of the “Distinguished Visitor’s Board” next 

to the Member Services Desk

New Jackpot Room, now located next to the Squash Courts

Old Committee Room, previously located next to the Squash Courts

Old Jackpot Room, previously located next to the Member Services Desk

New Committee Room, now located at the lower ground floor
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An infrared thermography scanning was commissioned to 
detect the water seepage problem on the plastered and 
tiled wall of the handicapped toilet. The source of the water 
seepage was from the toilet floor of the visitor’s toilet and 
water dampness was detected on the flooring of the visitor’s 
toilet. To facilitate rectification works, the visitor’s toilet was 
closed for a week. Dampness was also found in the Gym and 
wine cellar at the Padang Lounge during the renovation works.

The Property Subcommittee strives to adopt green measures 
to be energy-efficient. The conventional lamps in both kitchens 
which consumed high energy were replaced with LED panel 
lights. The operating hours of air-conditioners have been 
staggered to save energy and some of the air-conditioners 
in the restaurant will be switched off during off-peak periods 
to save energy. Signs are displayed at the light switches to 
remind staff to switch-off lighting and air-conditioning when 
not in use.      

Following feedback from Members, one of the parking lots near 
the loading/unloading bay was converted into a handicapped 
parking space. The number of closed-circuit TV cameras was 
increased to enhance safety and surveillance efforts.

Pest control and fumigation measures were carried out on 
a monthly basis to ensure that the Clubhouse is pest-free. 
Inspections of the external perimeters of the Clubhouse was 
conducted regularly with the pest control vendor to ensure 
the Clubhouse surroundings are clean and free from stagnant 
water.   
      
Owing to the age of the building, refurbishment and upgrading 
of facilities have to be an ongoing exercise and the Property 
Subcommittee will continue to ensure the completion of the 
following tasks in the first quarter of year 2016:

 • Re-lamping for the Multipurpose Court
 • Replacement of new lamp poles for the Courtyard
 • Installation of decorative lanterns at the main entrance  

and the side walls
 • Rectification works for air-conditioning at the Main 

Lounge

Pruning of trees and crown trimmings were conducted every 
six months to maintain trees at the carpark. Two rain trees 
along Connaught Drive were found to suffer structural defects 
and were removed. The National Parks Board has graciously 
agreed to replace one of the trees at no cost to the Club.     

Other repair and maintenance works, some of which may have 
passed unnoticed included the:

 • Annual shut-down for maintenance and servicing of  
the three air-conditioning chillers

 • Installation of an additional air-conditioner unit for the  
newly renovated Ladies’ staff rest area

 • Repainting and re-varnishing of the existing furniture 
such as tables, bar stools, doors and other areas within 
the Clubhouse

 • Installation of concrete stoppers at the carpark near the  
lawn bowls green to prevent cars from damaging the 
hedges.

In conclusion, I would like to extend my appreciation to the 
Members of the Property Subcommittee for their continuous 
support, invaluable contributions and dedication during the 
year. 

George V. Abraham
Chairman
Property Subcommittee

Front facade of the Clubhouse

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB30
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RULES & MEMBERSHIP SUBCOMMITTEE

Front row/left: Jeny, Adeline Tan, Brian Teo, Nigel Stearns. 
Back row/left: Damian Pereira, Serene Chew, Tushar Doshi, Anthony Netto. Not in photo: Josephine Ee.

It has been a challenging year for the Rules & Membership (R&M) 
Subcommittee with a newly constituted Committee.

CLUB MEMBERSHIP
The Club welcomed 86 new Ordinary Transferable Members, 60 new Term 
Members and 39 new Sports Members totalling 185 new Members. As at 31 
December 2015, the Active Membership stood at 5,805.

SPORTS MEMBERSHIP
The total number of Sports Membership decreased from 226 to 162 mainly 
due to the conversion of 43 Sports Members to Ordinary Transferable 
Members and the non-renewal of Sports Membership upon invitation for 
renewals.
 

Chairman

Brian Teo

Committee Members

Tushar Doshi

Josephine Ee

Anthony Netto

Damian Pereira

SUBCOMMITTEE RULES & MEMBERSHIP



SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB32

SUBCOMMITTEE RULES & MEMBERSHIP

DISCIPLINARY CASES
During the R&M Subcommittee’s term, a total of four 
disciplinary cases were attended to with suspensions and 
warnings meted out in several instances.

In this regard, the Committee would like to urge Members to 
observe the highest standard of decorum befitting the status 
of the Club.

MAJOR REVIEWS
Besides overseeing traditional tasks such as disciplinary 
matters, the R&M Subcommittee embarked on various 
major reviews namely the application of Rule 14 on Sports 
Membership, renewal of Sports Membership and the 
formulation of the Standard Operating Procedures for obtaining 
Legal Opinion by the Club. 

REVIEW OF THE CRITERIA FOR ADMISSION OF NEW 
SPORTS MEMBERS AND RENEWALS OF EXISTING 
SPORTS MEMBERS
The R&M Subcommittee drafted the White Paper on the 
application of the criteria for admission of new Sports Members 
and Renewals of Sports Members as per Rule 14 in order to 
provide a consistent application of the criteria.

To clarify how Rule 14 (b)(i) to 14(b)(iv) should be applied in 
a consistent and principled manner, R&M produced a White 
Paper on this subject. 

Essentially, the White Paper sets out instances where this Rule 
had been abused, for example, the view that fulfilling just one 
of the Rule 14(b) criteria is sufficient to be a Sports Member 
rather than a fulfilment of all the requirements as set out in 
Rule 14(b). 

Members can request for a copy of the White Paper through 
the Membership Department. R&M hopes to limit the abuse in 
applying Rule 14(b), safeguarding the Club’s interests through 
this exercise.

R&M, in the course of its work in 2015, also discovered that 
some Sports Members were not representing SCC in their 
chosen sport. This is clearly a breach of Rule 14(b)(ii). At 
the time of writing, R&M is investigating one particular sport 
section which has a high percentage of Sports Members who 
were not registered to play in any of the National League/
Division, even after excluding an additional numbers of Sports 
Members who joined after the season and therefore did not 
represent the Club in the competitive leagues, violating their 
commitment of 75% participation under the Club’s Rules.

Other breaches include the fielding of a non-Club Member in 
the Premier League. R&M encourages all Members to acquaint 
themselves with and observe the Rules of the Club. The 
Rules protect the rights, privileges and funds of the general 
membership.

Review of Rule 15(a) on Junior Sports Membership
At the Special General Meeting held on 1 April 2014, this Rule 
was amended and now states that: “Any person under the 
age of 26 may be elected as a Junior Sports Member”. This 
Rule has been misinterpreted to allow any applicant, so long 
as they are below 26, to be admitted as a JSM, regardless 
of employment status and prior contribution to the Club as a 
junior. 

Annual General Meeting, 21 April 2015

Junior Sports Member Election, 15 August 2015

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB32
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This is certainly not in the spirit of extending the age limit 
to 26 for JSMs. The intent was to allow existing JSMs who 
had served the Club for a period of time to give them a 
headstart in their career before committing to a huge increase 
in membership fees. This is also in line with the Convenors’ 
Guidelines on JSMs. 

This Rule contradicts the Convenors’ Guidelines (updated in 
July, 2015) under Clause 4b. which specifically states that: 
“Junior Sports Membership is open to local youths who are 
still studying and are not gainfully employed. Applications can 
be proposed and seconded only by section officials who are 
Ordinary Members”.

There is clearly a need to align Rule 15(a) and the Convenors’ 
Guidelines Clause 4b.

Review of the Club Rules and Bye-Laws
The R&M Subcommittee is conducting a thorough review of 
the existing Club Rules and Bye-Laws with the objective of 
ensuring that Rules are clear, specific and internally consistent.
The R&M Subcommittee has reviewed the proposal drafted by 
the Rule Change Task Force appointed by the former General 
Committee on the terms of office for General Committee and 
will be incorporating their recommendations to be put forth 
to the Membership for approval at a General Meeting to be 
scheduled later in 2016.

Special General Meeting, 12 November 2015

New Member’s Election Night, 14 September 2015

New Member’s Election Night, 8 June 2015

Annual General Meeting, 21 April 2015

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES (SOP) FOR 
OBTAINING LEGAL OPINION
As there is no SOP for obtaining Legal Opinion for the Club, 
the R&M Subcommittee has drafted one which was approved 
by the General Committee for a trial period of three months. 
This SOP spells out the processes for obtaining legal opinions 
in order to reduce costs to the Club.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
On a personal note, I would like to express my sincere 
gratitude to fellow R&M Subcommittee Members, the 
Management and staff from the Membership Department for 
their invaluable contribution of their time and efforts towards 
the Subcommittee’s work.

Last but not least, I wish to thank all SCC Members, the 
President, fellow General Committee Members and the 
Management for your support during our term in office.

Brian Teo
Chairman
Rules & Membership Subcommittee
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MEMBERSHIP PROFILE

VOTING 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Honorary Life Members 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Ordinary Members 3301 3291 3178 3121 3110 3076 2998 2921 2909 2876 2855 2877 2877 2827 2927

Corporate Members 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8

Life Members 11 12 12 13 15 13 13 12 12 12 11 9 8 9 9

Total Active Voting 
Members 3323 3314 3201 3145 3136 3100 3022 2944 2932 2899 2877 2897 2896 2847 2947

OTHER CATEGORIES 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Honorary Members 61 63 64 60 61 59 53 60 59 57 60 58 54 52 58

Family Members 1778 1829 1797 1736 1721 1646 1630 2055 1506 1461 1473 1525 1565 1646 1798

Sports Members 162 226 270 286 290 314 266 223 212 151 152 91 99 90 104

Term Members 166 179 184 182 180 187 172 130 23 6 3 2 0 0 0

Junior Sports Members 315 328 338 345 366 372 394 417 550 553 566 320 256 183 111

Total Active 
Other Members 2482 2625 2653 2609 2618 2578 2515 2885 2350 2228 2254 1996 1974 1971 2071

TOTAL MEMBERSHIP 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Active Voting Members 3323 3314 3201 3145 3136 3100 3022 2944 2932 2899 2877 2897 2896 2847 2947

Active Other Categories 2482 2625 2653 2609 2618 2578 2515 2885 2350 2228 2254 1996 1974 1971 2071

Sub-Total 5805 5939 5854 5754 5754 5678 5537 5829 5282 5127 5131 4893 4870 4818 5018

Absent Members 1845 1814 1919 1959 1964 1925 1916 2792 2892 2917 2949 2920 2926 2872 2820

Total Membership 7650 7753 7773 7713 7718 7603 7453 8621 8174 8044 8080 7813 7796 7690 7838

SPORTS SECTION 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Balut 128 143 152 164 169 190 230 125 132 131 184 150 153 149 158

Billiards & Snooker 211 204 196 206 206 201 189 188 188 200 222 206 199 204 221

Cricket 366 344 322 336 308 301 295 281 279 262 257 223 198 180 182

Darts 106 108 113 118 97 73 71 75 65 67 89 84 82 95 109

Golf 476 491 509 546 559 551 539 498 538 541 603 561 574 575 593

Hockey 226 244 214 245 234 216 L Hockey 49 60 73 84 95 60 45 51 48

M Hockey 190 163 230 226 265 126 137 147 134

Bridge 61 56 53 52

Lawn Bowls 121 119 123 137 142 135 130 109 130 124 149 122 138 122 144

Netball 51 60 54 66 58 52 34 5 19 23 42 45 56 55 62

Rugby 269 278 274 287 273 281 265 250 264 230 247 206 199 186 151

Soccer 215 234 229 232 273 225 224 222 238 221 202 205 194 184 206

Squash 361 379 376 393 379 361 351 311 316 317 361 352 383 406 440

Tennis 511 524 493 501 463 443 430 334 373 389 454 440 443 476 506

Total Membership 
of Sport Sections 3102 3184 3108 3283 3161 3029 2997 2621 2845 2815 3170 2780 2801 2830 2954

Membership as at 31 December 2015
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The Social Subcommittee had, year after year, organised many exciting 
events for the Club and its Members and 2015 had been nothing less. The 
first event kicked-off in February, with the last one ending on a high note on 
the last day of the year.

Popular regular events such as the monthly Pub Quiz Nights and Wine & 
Cheese (held on 5 June, 21 August and 13 November) continue to draw 
active participation from Members and their guests. In addition, a Bingo 
Night was launched and held every second Thursday of the month. 

Chairlady  

Joyce Foster

Committee Members 

Capt. E.R. Raymond Ambrose 

Ravinder Kaur   

Soma Devi   

Sunita Kapoor   

Tracy Jones  

Vikram Raman

SOCIAL SUBCOMMITTEE

Front row/left: Felicia Heng, Audrey Wang, Joyce Foster, Becky Xu, Chovin Blix Ong. 
Back row/left: Soma Devi, Sunita Kapoor, Vikram Raman, Ravinder Kaur. Not in photo: Capt. E.R. Raymond Ambrose, Tracy Jones

SUBCOMMITTEE SOCIAL
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2015 EVENTS

2015 YEAR OF THE WOODEN GOAT
FENG SHUI & ASTROLOGY TALK
11 February
This event is one of the “must-haves” in the SCC events 
calendar where Members gather many practical tips and fresh 
insights to what the New Year will bring. They also obtained 
various understandings on how to stimulate their individual 
wealth sectors at home and left the event with knowledge of 
all the auspicious dates and directions for 2015.

CHINESE NEW YEAR CELEBRATION
27 February
The evening kicked-off with an auspicious bang with the arrival 
of the spectacular ‘Twin Lions’, after which they then made 
their way around the Clubhouse showering prosperity and 
good fortune. The main highlight of the celebration was at the 
Courtyard where the lions took centre-stage with their high 
flying performance on tall pedestals.

Fringe activities such as palm reading and sugar painting 
were held around the Club. Members who prefer to relax in 
the comfort of the Main Lounge enjoyed the traditional ‘face 
changing’ performance and acrobatic acts, not forgetting our 
special guest band, MSG, who rocked the night away. 

APRIL FOOLS’ DAY SPECIAL COMEDY NIGHT
1 April
As the first event in conjunction with SG50, local renowned 
comedians Kumar and Alfred George were invited to incite 
laughter at the Main Lounge with their stand-up performance. 
Members were thoroughly entertained that evening with their 
spontaneous humour and a scrumptious dinner.

EASTER SUNDAY BRUNCH &
CHILDREN’S EASTER PARTY
5 April
The Easter Sunday Brunch at Padang Restaurant was a sold-
out event with Members enjoying a nice afternoon with their 
family. The Gilmour Room, on the other hand, was ‘semi-
transformed’ into a rabbit barn where a mini Easter Party was 
held. In collaboration with the RHQ Rabbit Headquarters, 
three breeds of rabbits were brought in for the occasion – a 
Flemish Giant, a Holland Lop and a Dwarf Hotot. In addition 
to some playtime with the rabbits, the children learned many 
interesting facts about these gentle fluffy creatures and the 
proper ways to care for them. 

HUNGARIAN WINE TASTING
10 April
Back by popular demand, we invited the Hungarian Trading 
House Singapore to conduct a wine tasting event. Members 
learned to appreciate not only the elegant taste of Hungarian 
wines but also the rich history that Hungary has to offer.

Hungarian Wine Tasting

Look Who’s Cooking with Club Member, Ms Sunita KapoorSCC Night Race Fiesta 2015
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LOOK WHO’S COOKING
18 April & 5 September
Our very own Social Subcommittee Member Ms Sunita Kapoor 
and SCC’s Chef De Cuisine Mark Tay brought Members and 
guests on a culinary adventure to India and modern Japan 
respectively. All present had a wonderful experience of the 
senses with the cooking demonstrations and food sampling 
thereafter. 

MOVIE UNDER THE STARS
7 June
The first ever outdoor movie experience at SCC brought 
Members back to the 90s with the all-time favourite movie, 
‘Grease’. They were thoroughly entertained as they sang along 
to the musical hits throughout the screening.

KAMPONG NIGHT
24 July
Members were treated to an evening with a series of Malay 
cultural performances. From a kampong feast, traditional 
dance and music, Members enjoyed the night and learnt some 
dance steps as well as the art of draping a sarong.

SCC CELEBRATES SG50
9 August
With the SG50 National Day Parade was held at the historic 
Padang, the Clubhouse was packed with Members and guests 
who gathered to join in the festivities. Everyone who attended 
was thrilled by the spectacular aerial displays by the Republic 
of Singapore Air Force Black Knights and the breath-taking 
display of fireworks throughout the celebration drew plenty of 
excitement around the Club. 

SCC NIGHT RACE FIESTA
18-20 September
In commemoration of Singapore’s Golden Jubilee, the Club 
was decked in red and white for the SCC Night Race Fiesta. 
Members and guests had an exciting time with entertainment 
around the Club and viewing the race from all areas of the 
Clubhouse. 

OKTOBERFEST
2 October
With an endless affair of beer and feasting, Die Dorf Fest 
Kapelle Oompah, a Bavarian-style band entertained Members 
and guest with a show-stopping, one-night-only performance 
at the Main Lounge.

Kampong Night in celebration of Hari Raya

SCC Night Race Fiesta

Intersection Quiz Night, themed ‘Superheroes’

SUBCOMMITTEE SOCIAL
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INTER-SECTION QUIZ NIGHT
16 October
11 teams of from the Sports Sections attended the Inter-section 
Quiz Night, unleashing their ‘powers’ to rein ‘SUPERHEROES’ 
for the night. Quiz Master, Nick Cochrane, entertained the 
night with ingenious questions from a range of topics. The 
Squash Section emerged champion for the night followed by 
the Cricket and Balut Sections.

REMEMBRANCE DAY
11 November
Special thanks to Professor Brian P. Farrell as well as 
distinguished Defence Advisers from the United Kingdom, 
New Zealand, Australia and the United States who were 
present at the ceremony.

DEEPAVALI CELEBRATION
20 November
The evening opened with SCC President Capt. Baldev Singh 
lighting the traditional oil lamp at the Main Lounge, after 
which Members and guests were treated to a spectacle 
of lights and music with energetic and vibrant Bollywood 
Dance performances, the Lightning Dholi and Bhangra Dance 
performances. The ‘Best Dressed of the Night’ was also 
awarded and the winner walked away with attractive prizes.

CHILDREN’S CHRISTMAS PARTY
19 December
SCC, together with Evolve Arts, presented a spectacular 
Christmas Pantomime – ‘Despicable Freeze’. Children and 
parents enjoyed an indoor picnic session at the Padang 
Restaurant while watching the famous frosty princess 
destroying a box of Christmas magic while head elf Selfie 
engaged the kids to guard it. Of course, our ‘resident’ Santa 
was back in town to shower every child with a present. Special 
thanks to Mr Phil Cunningham for bringing Santa to SCC.

CHRISTMAS EVE LUCKY DRAW
24 December
A pair of Raymond Weil watches, plus cash and a 3-night 
accommodation for two to the Maldives were the top prizes 
for the year’s lucky draw. With a total of 30 attractive prizes, 
the Main Lounge was bustling with Members and guests with 
Vernon Cornelius & Band entertaining everyone throughout 
the afternoon.

FIRE & ICE SCC COUNTDOWN BALL 2015
31 December
The Club was immersed in contrasting splashes of fiery reds 
and icy cool blues for the ‘Fire & Ice’ SCC Countdown Ball 
2015. Australia’s premier party band, the Jellybean Jam 
provided non-stop entertainment throughout the evening with 
chart-topping favourite hits. Wish balloons were released into 
the sky at the Padang Field at the stroke of midnight while the 
Gurkha Pipers ushered in 2016 along a spectacular fireworks 
backdrop from the Marina Bay area.

CONCLUSION
My sincere appreciation goes to my Social Subcommittee 
Members for their many wonderful creative ideas in keeping 
SCC abuzz. Not forgetting the SCC Management and Social 
Events Team that never fail to deliver and transform these 
ideas into quality events each time. Thanks to all who took 
part in the Social Survey as we gather results to plan a better 
2016 events calendar.

Joyce Foster
Chairlady
Social Subcommittee

SCC Countdown Ball 2015
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Chinese New Year Celebration
27 February 2015

Children’s Easter Party
5 April 2015

SOCIAL EVENTS
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SOCIAL EVENTS

SCC Celebrates SG50
9 August 2015
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SOCIAL EVENTS

SCC Night Race Fiesta
18 to 20 September 2015

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 41
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Oktoberfest
2 October 2015

Deepavali Celebration
20 November 2015

SOCIAL EVENTS
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Despicable Freeze Pantomime Children’s X’mas Party
19 December 2015

X’mas Eve Lucky Draw
24 December 2015

SOCIAL EVENTS
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Fire & Ice SCC Countdown Ball
31 December 2015

SOCIAL EVENTS

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB44
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The Section continues to be a most lively one. Our monthly 
in-house meetings are very popular with an average of 35 
Members and guests attending each meeting. 

In fact with the growing popularity, Members have requested 
that we meet occasionally twice a month with the second 
game being played on a Saturday afternoon. At the point of 
writing, the first Saturday session is scheduled for 9 April 2016. 

Balut Committee 2015/16

BALUT 

Elected 12 May 2015

Convenor
John L. Taylor

Captain
Raj Kumar

Secretary
Margaret Cunico

Treasurer
Lars Berg

Committee Members 
Mogens Andersen 
Yasmin Gaffoor 
Sunita Kapoor 
Else Stokkmo 

This year’s in-house winner was Mohan Balagopal. Totally 
unfair as Mohan gets plenty of practice by playing for NUSS 
and understandably so as Mohan is on the General Committee 
as well as their Games Control Board Member. 

A close second was Jasmine Fisher with our very own Capt. 
Raj Kumar in third spot.   

In the local Interclub league SCC entered five teams with 
Singapore Recreation Club, Eurasian Association, NUSS, 
Indian Association (IA) and the Tanglin Club. SCC won the 
league in 2014 but this year SCC came in a mere second 
narrowly missing out to IA by 62 points. IA scored 13,848 and 
SCC 13,786. 

However not all was lost for the effervescent, petite and 
ever-smiling Kiren Kaur won the individual prize against 100 
baluteers with a score of 3,730 points. John Taylor was second 
with 3,648 points. He also won the prize for the highest score 
in a single column with a 172 just edging out our own Geoffrey 
Mullett who had a 171.  

SCC Team 3, Interclub League Runners-up

SPORTS SECTION BALUT
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Thanks must go to the GM, Nigel Stearns, the SCC Sports 
Department and in particular to Thipa Mogan for looking after 
the Section’s affairs so well. To the Balut Committee in general 
– thanks to Capt. Raj for picking the winning teams. 

Special thanks to Lars Berg for keeping such meticulous 
accounts and to the ‘Spin Doctor’ Mogens Andersen for 
once again finding main sponsors for our Christmas Party. 
Very special thanks are due to Rajan Menon of Pernod Ricard 
for sponsoring all the Sections events for the year. And to all 
baluteers for making the years’ Balut sessions most sociable.

We all hope for better things in 2016 and continuing the SCC’s 
legacy as a Sports Club.

John Lewis Taylor 
Balut Convenor

The Section played its part in the Annual Pot Games by winning 
their element against the Tanglin Club thus helping SCC to 
retain the Cup. An enjoyable afternoon was also held at the 
Invitational Triangular –this annual tournament between NUSS, 
IA and SCC was won this year by IA. We will host in 2016.  

It came as no surprise that the gregarious and extremely witty 
Geoffrey Mullett won the Section’s ‘Spirit of Sports Award’ at 
the 2015 Annual Sports Awards. Geoffrey is a stalwart of our 
Section attending all our in-house meetings when not on his 
travels and playing in the league. He also loves going on tour. 

The Section went on three most enjoyable tours during the 
year. The first being to the 5th Annual Invitational run by the 
Kinabalu Club. Other Clubs involved were the Kinabalu Club 
(hosts), Kinabalu Yacht Club, Sabah Golf and Country Club, 
Sandakan Yacht Club and the Sarawak Club. A most enjoyable 
weekend was had by all 76 participants. SCC is honoured that 
it is the only Club invited from Singapore. 

Our second tour was to the Sarawak Club on 12 September. 
The final tour was the highlight of the year with the 35th Annual 
Interport held at Sandakan Yacht Club where the hospitality 
given was outstanding. 

Mogens Andersen, Joyce Foster, Raj Kumar at the Balut AGM Annual Pot Games versus Tanglin Club

Interclub winners
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Substantial developments have taken place over the last 
couple of months. The top of the list being our Section Member 
Peter Gilchrist who brought honour to both our Nation and 
Club by winning two Gold and one Silver medal at the 2015 
SEA games. It was also magnanimous of him to donate one 
of the Gold medals to the Billiards & Snooker Section – now a 
priceless exhibit at the Men’s Bar.
 
We played quite a number of inter-club tournaments with 
mixed results. On 14 September we entertained our “sister 
club” from Brisbane – Brisbane Tattersalls Club. They visited 
us on numerous occasions and were happy to see familiar 
faces. We won our game against them but that result took a 
backseat as camaraderie between both club members took 
centre stage. 

25 September saw our “brothers” from Thailand – the Royal 
Bangkok Sports Club. They visited and also gave us a small 
lesson in snooker. Their visit to SCC and our reciprocal visit 
to them will continue on. The strong bond between both 
clubs was ever prevalent. Our hospitality and staff friendliness 
continue to be a topic of conversation with visiting teams and 
this augurs well for the reputation of our Club. 

We hosted Tanglin Club for the Annual Pot Games. We played 
on a format of five Singles and two Doubles and managed to 
win a tough challenge put up by the competitive Tanglin team. 
With the fielding of our World Champion and star player, Peter 
Gilchrist we managed to beat them five games to two. 

Peter Gilchrist presenting his medal to Parasuram, Finance Member of SCC

Having a good time during Christmas Lunch

BILLIARDS & SNOOKER

Billiards & Snooker Committee 2015/16

Elected 24 Jul 2015

Convenor
Desmond Decker

Captain
Tan Bak Choon

Secretary
Matthew Lim

Treasurer 
Rangachari R.

Committee Members 
Jason Teo
Jason Tan
Peter Gilchrist
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As expected the competition was relentless but that did not 
ruin the fellowship and bonding.

The John Ewing Cup is an annual event which the two clubs 
take turns to host. This year it was Tanglin Club’s turn. We 
visited them on 21 November. We were going to use our 
Singles fire power; unfortunately we lost two of the five games. 
This resulted in us relying on our Doubles tiger team to be 
at their best to win this year’s game. We can unequivocally 
announce that both Peter Gilchrist and Victor Yeong rose to 
the occasion to secure us the honour.

We travelled to Penang to play against Penang Sports Club 
and Penang Club. Last year it was our turn to visit them and 
we managed to put together a team but unfortunately did 
not have some of our key players as they were unavailable. 
We lost to both clubs but not without putting up a tough 
challenge. Currently our pennant team is playing in the top 
division league and at the time of writing ranked amongst the 
top three on the table. This is a significant achievement as we 
have never contemplated sending a team, let alone playing in 
the top division league. An excellent result from playing with 
unyielding gusto and pride for the Club. We’re developing 
individuals in the hope of sending a second team next year.

Besides winning competitions we have also embarked on a 
Section outreach programme to reach out to all our Section 

Members. The present committee’s direction and goal is for an 
active and inclusive Section. This has produced great results 
for the Billiards & Snooker Section in being socially active.

We must also report that the Section has also grown in 
numbers. Over the past few months we have seen quite a 
number of Members signing up to join the Billiards & Snooker 
Section. This is an increase of over 18 percent of Section 
Members. We have also seen active participation of Section 
Members in all our activities. We hope to work hard and 
continue to grow the Section. 

We had a great Christmas lunch for our Members with 
great food, music and great bonding. The turnout was 
unprecedented. We had a good Lunar New Year dinner with 
the traditional “Lo Hei” and lion dance.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow 
Committee Members for their sincere efforts and selfless 
contributions to develop a vibrant Section. The Section looks 
forward to another enjoyable and competitive year.

Desmond Decker
Billiards & Snooker Convenor

Victor Yeong at the John Ewing Cup Tournament

Interpot Games with Penang Club

Interport Game with RBSC, September 2015
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International Mixed Triples Tournament

BOWLS

Bowls Committee 2015/16

Elected 17 Jan 2015

Convenor
Anthony Richardson

Captain
T. Velu

Secretary
Edmund Lin

Treasurer 
Derek Hodgkinson

Committee Member 
Michael Daryanani

NATION IN CELEBRATION
2015 was a special year for Singapore during which time the 
nation celebrated its 50th birthday with a series of celebratory 
events all around the country. Amidst the fireworks, concerts 
and spectacle, the Bowls Section sacrificed our beloved green 
for most of the 2015 bowling season to the National Day 
Parade. However, good people are often blessed with great 
friends.

The Tanglin Club generously offered their green and even 
allowed us to hold our Club competitions over several 
weekends. SCC Bowls Section will remember this great 
gesture for a long time to come and promises to lend a helping 
hand (except during the Pot Games) whenever there is a need.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS IN OFFICE
A new committee took office in January 2015 led by long-
time Member of the Section Tony Richardson. T. Velu was 
promoted to Captain having last held the appointment of 
Committee Member in the previous Section Committee. Derek 
Hodgkinson retained his role as the Treasurer and the newly 
appointed secretary was Edmund Lin. The last person making 
up the committee was Michael Daryanani who was appointed 
as the sole Committee Member in 2015.

SECTION MEMBERSHIP IN NUMBERS
With the green closed, we experienced a slow year in Bowls 
Section membership recruitment naturally. At the beginning of 
the year we started with 119 Members and ended the year 
with 121 Members, a net increase of two Members. 

SECTION TOURNAMENTS IN ACTION
Only two Section competitions were held during the 2015 
season due to the loss of the green. The highly anticipated 
Singles tournament held in the beginning of the year marked 
the emergence of Zoher Motiwalla as he brushed aside all 
the competitors to claim the much coveted title of SCC 
Bowls Men’s Champion and the Allan Cup. Along the way, 
he beat national players like Christian Huang (3rd) and also 
Club legends like Mr Chai H.Y. (2nd). A well-deserved winner 
without a doubt!
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They say form is temporary but class is permanent. Class 
is exactly how you can describe our ladies’ champion Mary 
Lim. In the round robin format of the ladies’ competition, she 
won all her opponents to emerge as the undisputed ladies’ 
champion of Bowls Section and the recipient of the Rose 
Bowl. Shermeen Lim came in a close second, only losing to 
Mary Lim in the competition. 

In the peripheral Plate competition, Wong Hui Kai fended off 
tough competition to be named the Singles’ Plate winner, 
beating Retna Sabapathy in the finals.
 
In November, we held our second tournament at Tanglin 
Club. The mixed drawn pairs achieved a great response from 
our ever enthusiastic bowlers where 20 bowlers were drawn 
together to form 10 pairs. In the end, the pair of Melvin Tan and 
Ganesh Ramanathan fought off the resistance from the pair 
of Mary Lim and Michael Daryanani to clinch top spot in the 
competition. The combination of K. C. Chew and K.U. Menon 
won third, victorious from the third place play-off.
 
A hearty congratulation to our Section’s finest for their 
domestic glory!

TOURING IN GROUPS
This year, the Section went on three overseas tours which is 
one more than the usual due to the loss of the green during 
the season. In March, a small group led by our Convenor Tony 
Richardson embarked on a trip to Australia for the Annual Tatts. 
Although our teams put up a good showing in various matches, 
they did not win enough points to win the competition.
 
Also during mid-year, the Section sent a group of adventurous 
bowlers to Kochi, India for some friendly matches over there. 
Although the condition of the green was difficult to adapt to, 
the group who went displayed resilience and competitiveness, 
well representing the spirit of SCC.
  
Last but not least, in December, there was the big event of 
the 14th Annual Triangular Lawn Bowls Tournament between 
SCC, Kowloon Bowling Green Club (KBGC) from Hong Kong 
and Royal Bangkok Sports Club (RBSC). This year, this highly 
competitive tournament was held in Bangkok and hosted by 
RBSC. RBSC aided by several top class international players 
dominated proceedings and claimed all the prizes up for grabs.

Other than being the overwhelming winners in this competition, 
RBSC showed superb class by hosting us to lunches, dinners 
and a very well-organised closing party. The Section Members 
who went thoroughly enjoyed themselves and the Section 
would like to extend our warm gratitude to RBSC for being 
excellent hosts, as well as KBGC for their sporting spirit.
 
ELITE BOWLERS IN GLORY
2015 has been a fantastic year for many of our bowlers outside 
the Club. In terms of representation of the Club in national 
tournaments, SCC Bowls Section has done us proud in many 
instances. Going down the list, the pair of Chng Ming Li and 
Shermeen Lim became the champion pair of Singapore by 
winning the National Pairs for ladies’ after a very dominant 
display at our second home ground, the Tanglin Club. In the 
triples ladies’ competition, the trio of Loh Hui Shan, Chng 
Ming Li and Shermeen Lim emerged as the runners-up after 
losing narrowly by shot difference in the round robin format 
competition. 

RBSC Triangular Tour

Champions, International Mixed Triples Tournament

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB50
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SCC and KBA teams in Kochi

In the national mixed triples, the SCC trio of Wong Hui Kai, 
Chng Ming Li and Shermeen Lim lost in the finals but achieved 
a very credible runners-up position. Last but not least, SCC 
has a national champion in the form of Christian Huang as he 
thumped all his competitors to emerge Champion of Singapore 
in the 9-9-3 National Open Singles. A great SG50 gift for the 
Club.

After many years, the Section has shown its ability to be 
sustainable and competitive in the national arena. Well done 
to our elite bowlers and definitely plenty to look forward to in 
2016 with our green back in use.

Other than the national competitions, our SCC teams have 
also been active in competitions held by other organisations 
as well. The team of Mary Lim, Loh Hui Shan, Chng Ming Li, 
Shermeen Lim, Edmund Lin and Melvin Tan stepped up to 
the challenge and won the overall championship in the LBAD 
President’s Challenge Cup. Along the way, we clinched the 
Singles challenge trophy as well as the Pairs challenge trophy 
winning all but one of the trophies. In the other significant 
competition held at Tanglin as they celebrated their 150th  
anniversary, the mixed triples team of Melvin Tan, Wong Hui 
Kai, Chng Ming Li and Shermeen Lim faced strong opposition 
from teams from all over Asia Pacific and eventually stood up 
to the challenge by winning the championship.

Some of our bowlers represented either the Club or country 
overseas as well. A team of young bowlers comprising of 
Melvin Tan, Wong Hui Kai, Chng Ming Li and Shermeen 
Lim represented SCC in the inaugural Angeles Lawn Bowls 
Competition in Philippines and brought back the runners-up in 
the Plate competition missing out being champions by losing 
narrowly in the Plate finals. 

Christian Huang and Josephine Lim also did the Club and 
country proud through good showings in the Asia Pacific 
Lawn Bowls Tournament in Christchurch. Based on their 

results, Christian Huang in Men’s Pairs and Men’s Fours and 
Josephine Lim in Women’s Pairs, Singapore qualified for these 
events for the upcoming World Bowls Championship in 2016. 
Well done to all the bowlers for their amazing achievements.

Also during the year, the Pot Games was rained off as SCC 
retained the trophy and the Giles Roche cancelled due to the 
lack of green.

SECTION PARTIES IN SCC
Apart from the achievements on the green, the Bowls Section 
does know a thing or two about partying as well. We started the 
year with the opening carnival on our old green in a series of 
friendly competitions and adjourned to the The Oval Verandah 
subsequently for some drinks and food. As we anticipate the 
restoration of the new green, let us not forget about the old 
green that served us so well over the many years.
 
Also, as the festive season neared in December, we held our 
annual Christmas dinner with a “bright and sunny” theme. 
The turnout was fantastic as more than 50 Members and their 
friends turned up. A raffle draw was held and everyone went 
home with at least a prize. The year certainly ended with a 
bang.

YEAR IN REVIEW
2015 has certainly been an unforgettable year where we played 
majority of our bowls at Tanglin. Also the various achievements 
by our bowlers continued to make us proud to be part of SCC 
and this amazing Section. As we move forward in 2016, let 
us cherish the memories and look forward to a vibrant future 
ahead filled with sustained achievements and friendships.

T.Q. Lim
Bowls Convenor 2016/17 
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The Bridge Section is pleased that its membership is 
growing as it enters into its fourth full year as a Sports 
Section under the auspices of the Games Control Board. 
The Duplicate Bridge sessions on Mondays are now held 
in the Victoria Room, which has proven to be an excellent 
venue. The sessions are very well attended and regularly 
total six to eight tables per session.

The Section holds more than 40 weekly bridge sessions 
annually since 2014. Mr Carl Parker, a certified Bridge 
Teacher by both the SCBA and the American Contract 
Bridge League (“ACBL”), has continued to support the 
Section as Bridge Director of the regular Monday evening 
Duplicate Bridge sessions.

Besides our weekly regular games, the Section also holds 
special events to celebrate the multi-ethnic festivals here 
in Singapore. During these ‘festive’ Bridge sessions, the 
competition heightens as a special prize is awarded to the 
best pair of the session. The two most significant events of 
the year are the AGM-cum-National Day and the Christmas 
events.

At the Christmas event, the Bridge Section presents 
its Annual Awards – Best Individual Player and Best 
Championship Pair for the year. 2015’s Best Championship 

Bridge Members pulling Christmas crackers

BRIDGE

Elected 20 Aug 2015

Convenor
Olivia Law

Captain
Soma Devi

Secretary
Trevor Chapman

Treasurer
Richard Holloway

Committee Members 
Firoz Khimji
Chitra Varaprasad

Bridge Committee 2015/16

pair was John Martens and Stephanie Hodges and the Best 
Individual Player was Seah Beng Tee.

The Section’s AGM was held in August 2015 and the Members 
chose to retain the same Committee Members in their 
respective posts.

The Section continues to encourage Members to take part in 
external competitions. We are still part of the Premier Bridge 
League (a conglomeration of seven Bridge Clubs in Singapore), 
which will begin in the second quarter of this year. As Bridge is 
now part of the Annual POT Games, our team valiantly faced 

SPORTS SECTION BRIDGE
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Premier Bridge League

Best Championship pair,  John Martens and Stephanie Hodges

Christmas Game

Tanglin Club for the second time in 2015. Unfortunately, we 
lost to them again but this time by a closer margin than the 
previous year. 

The Section held a Beginners’ Bridge Course starting in late 
January 2016. It was heartening to organise this course as we 
had 16 beginners unlike previous years. Mr Carl Parker was the 
instructor and the beginners gave very positive feedback about 
the course. The Section now has to encourage them to come 
and play consistently with all the other regulars. The regular 
Bridge sessions will also now be interspersed with Bridge 
‘lessons’ by Mr Parker to improve the play of all Members. 
These ‘lessons’ will take place once every six weeks for a start.

The Royal Lake Club in Kuala Lumpur has invited the Section 
to take part in the Royal Lake Club Bridge Congress. This 
event will be held in mid-October 2016. The Section is looking 
forward to sending a team of at least four Members to this 
event.

The Club staff continue to support the Section in its usual 
efficient and friendly manner. Again, the Section would like 
to commend the F&B team for looking after us so well at the 
Victoria Room. The Section has also been able to use the 
Gilmour Room when it is available for our ‘special’ Bridge 
events. 

We hope to increase awareness of Bridge among other SCC 
Members. An inter-sectional Whist Drive is in the pipeline. 
Finally, the Section would like to thank the Sports Department 
for making it so easy to play Bridge in the Club.

Olivia Law
Bridge Convenor
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INTRODUCTION
2015 was always going to be a challenging year given the 
loss of the Padang from early April. However, we are fortunate 
to have the Dempsey Ground and it has become integral to 
cricket at SCC. Before the start of the 2015 season, we decided 
that seven league teams was one too many to accommodate 
and disbanded the Pumas. Our six league teams played a 
total of 80 matches and we won 54% of them across Divisions 
1-4. This was better than 46% in 2014, but someway short 
of 75% in 2013, our best ever season as a club. 104 players 
represented the Club in league cricket, plus approximately 
another 45 in the Saturday XI.

From a results perspective, we had a moderate year without 
any silverware from the league teams. The season started well, 
with all teams well in the hunt for trophies after the first two 
months of the season. It was probably more than a coincidence 
that results started to deteriorate after we lost the use of the 
net facilities at SCC and were forced to move our training 
sessions to CSC. While we were extremely grateful to have 
this alternative, attendance at training noticeably dropped off.

WHAT WERE THE POSITIVES?
Although overall results could have been better, there were 
many positives to reflect on from the season:

 • Probably the most significant development for the 
Section was that for the first time ever, we were able 
to appoint a Head Coach. Ricky Anderson, a Level 
3 coach and former Essex and Northants county 
cricketer, provided much needed structure and quality 

to our training sessions. His passion and enthusiasm 
for the game shone through as did his determination 
to maintain consistently high standards during training. 
We are grateful for the Club’s support to make the hiring 
of a coach possible. I have every confidence that the 
practices being implemented over the last year will see 
us reap more tangible benefits in 2016. This includes 
the financial gain of having a robust junior programme 
as we look to use the Club’s reputation and standing to 
take more of a role in nurturing junior talent across the 
age groups. 

 • We continue to have a strong core of players who are 
committed to playing for SCC, including many of the 
new Members.

 • Junior cricket – Despite the loss of training facilities at 
SCC, we were able to maintain a very healthy Cricket 
Youth Development (CYD) section. The highlight was a 
victory in the Howzat Under 15 league. 

 • The newly christened SCC Sphinxes (otherwise known 
as the Vets), won the Vets league with a 100% success 
rate. The enthusiasm and commitment shown by 
players the wrong side of 40 suggested that we need to 
provide more opportunities to play competitive cricket 
as a team.

 • The Club XI was introduced for the first time. The idea 
was that this would provide additional opportunities 
for league players and juniors. We need to continue to 
develop this concept next season and beyond.

CRICKET

Cricket Committee 2015/16

Elected 27 Nov 2015

Convenor
David Jones

Captain of Cricket
Dene Border

Secretary
Arjun Kakar

Treasurer
Will Tipping

Tours & Fixtures Secretary
Joe Windscheffel

Cricket Youth Development
Riaz Hussien

Social Cricket Secretary
Hugh Darwell

SPORTS SECTION CRICKET
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2015 AWARDS – ROLL OF HONOUR

Award Winner
Section Person of the Year Riaz Hussien
Section Player of the Year
(Aram Bail Trophy) 

Jack Ledger

Most Improved Player (John Martens Trophy) James Kilbee
Junior Sports Member of the Year Paul Immanuel
Section Fielder of the Year Duncan Bond
Best Newcomer Vivek Dixit
Klang Bang Dong Trophy Joe Windscheffel
Lions Player of the Year Praveen Vijay
Lions Best Batsman (JT Hung Trophy) Riaz Hussien
Lions Best Bowler (John Meyer Cup) Praveen Vijay
Lions Best Fielder Andrew Goldsmith
Cougars Player of the Year Phil Simmonds
Tigers Player of the Year Pete Murray
Cheetahs Player of the Year James Kilbee
Panthers Player of the Year James Watson
Jaguars Player of the Year Tom Corrie
Saturday XI Player of the Year Matthew Streeton

Jack Ledger
Section Player of the Year

Riaz Hussien
Section Person of the Year

Paul Immanuel
JSM of the Year

Nick Power and Andy Beer
collecting the trophy for SCC Vets

Cricket Section JSMs

 • Communications – The re-introduction of Bails provided 
regular updates to the section and Nick Dorney should 
be acknowledged for his efforts to make this happen.

 • Involvement with Singapore Cricket Association (SCA) 
– After several years of limited involvement, SCC is now 
much better represented. Suresh Kalpathy is Deputy 
President, Harish Dongre is Secretary, Dene Border is 
on the Tournament Committee, Pete Muruthi and Andy 
Williams on the Development Committee, David Jones, 
Bala Narayanan and Zubin Shroff on the Selection 
Committee. As the premier cricket club in Singapore, 
we should be contributing significantly to the future 
direction of Singapore cricket.

 • Interports – After only one interport in 2014, we visited 
Kowloon Cricket Club, Royal Bangkok Sports Club and 
Royal Selangor Club in 2015.

INFRASTRUCTURE AND GROUNDS
Apart from three Lions matches, all our home games were 
played at Dempsey. Prior to the start of the season, the artificial 
wicket was replaced and re-laid in the centre of the ground. In 
addition, drainage which has been a major issue over the past 
few seasons has been improved significantly. Both of these 
changes were major improvements and we are grateful for the 
Club’s support to make them happen.

The improvements have also meant that we will now be able 
to offer the ground out for more external teams and, in keeping 
with practices around the island, demand an affiliation fee for 
the right to call it their home. This comes on top of the usual 
ground hire and so helps recoup the costs of maintaining the 
ground.

JUNIOR CRICKET
The development of a strong junior contingent and 
development programme has huge potential for the Club, 
not just in home grown talent performing on the cricket field 
but for providing a steady revenue stream for us to spend on 
the Section. This process is already well under way under the 
vision of Ricky and Riaz Hussien with the help of some other 
coaches, notably Arun Vijayan. 

There is just so much promise in this area and it really is in 
all our interests to pursue it as hard as possible. Growing the 
junior programmes in conjunction with the SCA’s planned 
push back into local schools could be a very big contributor to 
the Club renewing the lease at Dempsey, and even the Padang 
in the future. 

The second aspect of junior cricket that we have sought to 
work on is selection for the senior teams as regular players and 
not just to fill out an XI. We had 26 JSMs play league cricket 
this season and only one did not get at least two matches (and 
this was a player who played one game during holidays while 
studying abroad). 



SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB56

SPORTS SECTION CRICKET

Fifteen of those 26 played more than five games and this 
compares favourably to 2014 when we had an extra team in 
Pumas and the Muruthis and Chris Janik were still JSMs. A 
massive part of this has been the willingness of the Captains 
to adopt the youngsters into their squads and give them every 
chance to succeed. They should be congratulated for this 
approach and with that help we have been able to uncover 
some very promising young players. 

IN CONCLUSION
We coped well in a difficult season away from the Padang, with 
a great team spirit throughout the Section. As always, there are 
many thank yous to make:

 • Firstly to my Committee who were all fully committed 
to their roles and made my life that much easier. Dene 
Border, in his first year as Captain of Cricket, put in far 
more than anyone could reasonably expect in a full-
time, let alone volunteer role.

 • I would like to record my thanks to Ben Gliddon, who 
is stepping down after two years as Tours & Fixtures 
Secretary, a thankless task, particularly this year without 
the Padang and Kallang for most of the season.

 • All six league Captains were new this season and 
embraced their roles wholeheartedly. They deal with 
regular changes to their starting XIs every week, which 
can be extremely frustrating and takes a high degree of 
flexibility in strategies and tactics.

 • The role of the scorer often taken for granted – the 
fact we have four accomplished scorers that turn up 
for us regularly is extremely fortunate. Lorraine Meyer, 
Tracy Jones, Sarah Seabright and Sadiq Tanoli are our 
unsung heroes. A special thank you to Tracy, for also 
being the manager of the Lions team and as always 
being there to help with just about anything happening 
within the Section.

 • Nick Dorney who reinvigorated Bails after the publication 
had been dormant since the departure of Push Sharma. 
This resource is invaluable in connecting the Section 
and the effort you poured into it was tremendous. A 
great mix of information and humour, and I look forward 
to seeing it continue in 2016. 

 • Rashed, Minuddin and the rest of the SCC ground staff 
for their early season work at the Padang, preparing 
good wickets for multiple trial games in the same 
weekend as well as two Lions fixtures. Subsequently, 
they did excellent work at the redeveloped Dempsey 
ground which has hosted a huge volume of cricket this 
year, including first division. 

 • The Sports Department under the leadership of Janet 
Ng. In particular, Wendy Foo and Thipa Mogan whose 
work behind the scenes is immense. The amount of 
organisational work these ladies do with their team is 
scary and it is a wonder other clubs manage to function 
without that kind of support. Never a complaint despite 
the many and varied tasks we set them. 

 • Thanks as always go to the Club Management, under 
the leadership of Nigel Stearns. 

David Jones
Cricket Convenor

Hari Kukreja bowling against Christ’s School, Christchurch

SCC and RSC teams for the Chris Syer Salver

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB56
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DARTS

Darts Committee 2015/16

Elected 7 May 2015

Convenor
Mohietheen Fathima

Captain
Anthony Houlahan

Secretary
Shelia Nagiah

Treasurer 
Soma Devi

Committee Members 
Genevieve Chase
Raymond Ambrose

Co-Opted 
Philip Ng 
Mohan Balagopal 
Lynn Wilson

At the Darts AGM held on 7 May 2015, the Darts Section 
Committee (DSC) Members were elected to their respective 
post to plan and execute a programme of activities designed 
to maintain and promote interest within the Section.

Thank you SCC President, Capt. Baldev Singh for gracing the 
AGM, Chairman GCB Mr Richard Stapley-Oh, GC Members 
Ms Joyce Foster, Mr George Abraham and Mr Anwar Gaffoor 
and former Chairman GCB Mr. T. Ravi Chandran for attending. 
    
DARTS NIGHT
The Darts Night is held on the first Thursday of the month and 
attendance has improved tremendously from previous years, 
partly due to the significant increase in Section membership – 
the highest for the past 10 years.  

DARTS TRIANGULAR
The year started with a bang as SCC hosted the Darts Triangular 
on 31 January against NUSS and SGCC. Each team played 
approximately 15 games in each category – Men’s Singles/
Doubles, Ladies’ Singles and Mixed Doubles. NUSS won this 
year with SGCC in second and SCC, third.

LO HEI  
The Section welcomed the Year of the Goat with a strong 
turnout of 40 attendees for some friendly games and ‘Lo Hei’ 
at The Oval.

FRIENDLY GAME WITH BRITISH HIGH COMMISSION
15 Darts Members went to the British High Commission (BHC) 
on 20 March for a return match of Men’s Singles/Doubles, 
Ladies’ Singles/Doubles and Mixed Triples. Although SCC did 
very well, the final score was 14-11 to BHC. Thank you, John 
Lally (BHC) for organising and making it a memorable game for 
both teams to foster great camaraderie.

Darts Triangular
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ANNUAL LADIES’ DARTS NIGHT
Held on 4 June, this is a night to be remembered by most 
ladies at SCC! With an overwhelming response of 10 teams 
participating, Cricket, Squash and Tennis fielded two teams 
each, while Balut, Bridge, Netball and the SCC staff fielded a 
team each.

Our male players, Raymond Ambrose, John Spackman, Philip 
Ng, Mohan Balagopal and a special guest from Australia, 
Robert Bulluss greatly supported the event with scoring.

The event was filled with many competitive moments as teams 
put up a good fight. Lynn Wilson representing Netball received 
the highest score of 132 and won a bottle of wine. 

Congratulations to the Squash Crushers, winners of the 
evening, followed by Cricket, Netball and Squash Tarts in 
second, third and fourth place.

Many thanks to our generous sponsors from Life Spa, Epi 
Treatz, Atos Wellness and Real Yoga for their exclusive treats 
for our ladies and Avatar Wellness Complete, Genevieve 
Chase, Smith’s Fish & Chips and the Section Committee 
for sponsoring the prizes. Thank you, Rajan Menon (Pernod 
Ricard) for the bubbly.

ANNUAL DARTS INTERSECTION BULL’S EYE 
TOURNAMENT
With skills and flair of international darters, SCC President 
Capt. Baldev Singh and GC Members Ms Joyce Foster, Mr 
Parasuram Krishnan and Mr George Abraham flight their darts 
perfectly at the balloons to commence the tournament.

This tournament had been very well supported by the Sports 
Sections and in 2015, 11 teams participated with keen 
competitive spirit. Balut, Cricket and Tennis fielded two teams 
each, while Billiards & Snooker, Bowls, Bridge, Netball, Soccer 
and Squash were each represented by a team. We also had a 
team from the GC, comprised of Joyce, Para and George.

The teams competed convivially with the Darts Section there to 
assist and support them. Everyone had a great time especially 
with the generous flow of beverages and good food. Needless 
to say, the imbibing was encouraged to ensure the flight of the 
darts towards the bull’s eye was smooth and effortless.

The Soccer Section emerged champions again with Squash as 
runners-up and Balut, third. 

Muchisimas gracias to the SCC President and GC Members 
who graced the event and all Sports Sections for participating 
so enthusiastically and making this tournament another huge 
success. 

8TH SCC ANNUAL SPORTS AWARD 
Philip Ng was awarded ‘Spirit of Sport’ for the Section and 
a truly deserving one as he took ownership and pride in 
his responsibilities and delivered them well. The Section 
Committee appreciates his great captainship and how he 
successfully planned and executed the various tournaments. 

The Section was awarded ‘Sports Initiative of the Year’ for 
its efforts in organising various intersection events such as 
the Annual Darts Intersection Bull’s Eye Tournament and the 
Ladies’ Darts Night. This is the most prestigious award the 
Section has ever won in SCC, and it would not have been 
possible without the effort and commitment by the Section 
Committee.

ANNUAL POT GAMES 2015
After a week of some serious training at the Men’s Bar (thanks 
to Section Captain Anthony for the motivation and barman, 
Chris for putting up with our frequent demands for sustenance) 
the stage was set for the Annual Pot Games.

Men’s Singles: John Spackman, Sebastian Williams and Paul 
Foster won their respective games 2-0. Highlights included a 
‘bull’ checkout for Sebastian and ‘180’ for Paul.

Annual Ladies’ Darts Night

SCC darters at the Annual Pot Games
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Ladies Singles: Shelia played some terrific darts winning 2-0. 
Fathima however, went down 2-1 but with a fantastic effort of 
a ‘76’ finish.

Men’s Doubles: Sebastian Williams and Paul Foster won 2-1 
while John Spackman and Graham Wilson narrowly lost 1-2 
with plenty of friendly banter.

Finally, our Welsh duo, comprised of Anthony Houlahan and 
Lynn Wilson, and Graham Wilson and Genevieve Chase 
represented the Club in Mixed Doubles. The team from ‘the 
Valleys’ won 2-1, while Graham and Genevieve lost 1-2.

The final results placed SCC as overall winners with a 15-8 
score. Credit goes to everyone who came to compete against 
The Tanglin Club and thank you to our supporters from the 
Section for their presence. The team worked really hard for this 
win, practicing almost every other day at the Men’s Bar. With 
our determination, we came back strong and contributed to 
SCC’s overall win at the Pot Games. 

TOUR TO THAILAND (By Genevieve Chase)
2015 ended well with 10 Members travelling to Bangkok for a 
tournament against the Thailand Darts Association (TDA). 

TDA hosted a day of friendly and strong competition with 
Singles and Doubles. Despite putting some practice sessions 
pre-event, and throwing some superb darts on the day, 
we found ourselves up against a well-drilled Thai team that 
included national players with what might have been Olympic 
representation. Nevertheless, Shelia caused the biggest upset 
of the afternoon in beating one of their strongest players 2-1 
in a game of 501.

After the competition, the Thais provided us with tips to help us 
improve on our techniques and the afternoon continued with 
more social games and challenges.

YEAR END PARTY 
A time for the entire Section to get-together, the Year End 
Party, themed ‘Rockstar’ was held at the Gilmour Room with 
close to 50 attendees, including past presidents Col. Guru and 
Mr Manu Bhojwani. 

Games were organised by Mohan Balagopal with the best 
Dressed Snowman as the highlight. Philip Ng, with the longest 
red nose, won. The evening was filled with happiness as 
everyone participated in the game.

A special token was presented to Bianca (MSD), Ahmad (The 
Oval) and Chris (Men’s Bar) for rendering their services to the 
Section.

A lucky draw was held with winners walking away with fantastic 
travel vouchers.

Amy Bondi, Singapore’s ‘Tina Turner’ rocked the dance floor 
and entertained us with her great voice and music.

Sincere thanks to our Chairman GCB and GC Member Ms 
Joyce Foster for attending our event and showing their support 
to the Section; Raymond Ambrose, Soma Devi, Shelia Nagiah, 
Mohan Balagopal for donating prizes for the lucky draw; Sally 
Brenchley, Mohan Balagopal, Philip Ng and Soma Devi for 
organising and ensuring the party was a success; and our 
sponsors Mr Rajan Menon (Pernod Ricard) for the booze and 
Atos Wellness for their spa vouchers.

CONCLUSION
Darts Section is blessed with a fantastic Committee 
continuously working hard for the Section and ensuring all 
planned events goes smoothly. We have achieved our goals for 
2015 winning an award at the Sports Awards and Pot Games. 
We had a great opportunity to play with international darters in 
Thailand and bring back the spirit of Darts to SCC.

The Section Committee would like to place on record its 
gratitude to all Section Members who have in one way or other 
contributed to the continued success of the Section.

Mention must also be made to the Club staff from F&B – Mr 
Daljeet Singh, Ahmad and Daniel and from MSD – Bianca, Gail, 
Zaini. Special gratitude to Chovin and Becky, General Manager 
Mr Nigel Stearns and the Sports Department, especially Janet 
and Thipa, for their contribution to the success of the Section. 
The Section is indeed very grateful to our past Presidents Col. 
Guru and Mr Manu Bhojwani who has supported every Darts 
Section event – Thank you!

Mohietheen Fathima
Darts Convenor

The ‘Rockstars’ at the Year End Party

Bangkok tour

SPORTS SECTION DARTS
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As at 31 December 2015, we had a total of 476 Golf Section 
Members.

At the beginning of 2015, the Section made a decision to 
withdraw from the ISCGT to concentrate on our own golfing 
activities.

The Section held several events and participated in 
competitions and tournaments in 2015.

25 JANUARY
We held the yearly interclub competition versus Changi Golf 
Club (CGC). While the game was played at CGC with CGC 
absorbing the green fees, SCC played host for the after-match 
dinner and drinks. 

12 FEBRUARY
We organised a Golf Social Night at the Gilmour Room for 
Section Members to enjoy some fellowships and be informed 
of our golfing calendars for the year.

3 MARCH
The CNY Golf Game was held at Singapore Island Country 
Club.

28 APRIL
We had a social Golf Game at Jurong Country Club.

7 to 10 MAY
12 Members made the Golf Trip to Hong Kong upon the 
invitation for a return match with Hong Kong Football Club.

9 JULY
Interport game at Jurong Country Club versus Royal Selangor 
Club where SCC played host.

31 JULY TO 1 AUGUST
Peter and Hugh organised the golfing trip to Batam and it was 
well supported.

9 SEPTEMBER
The SCC Golf Annual Tournament was held at the Serapong 
Course at Sentosa Golf Club. Dinner was then held at The 
Padang Restaurant. The overall champion was Allan Muir.

24 NOVEMBER
We held a social golf game at Warren Golf & Country Club.

10 DECEMBER
The Christmas Golf Game was played at Tanah Merah Country 
Club (Tampines Course). 

Happy golfing!

Richard Loo
Golf Convenor

GOLF

Golf Committee 2015/16

Elected 15 Oct 2015

Convenor
Richard Loo

Captain
Chionh Chye Hion

Secretary
Michael Dorris

Treasurer
Vincent Ho
 
Committee Members
Alvin Khoo
Karamjit Singh



ANNUAL REPORT 2015 61

SCC Christmas Golf

SCC Annual Golf Tournament at Sentosa Golf Club

SPORTS SECTION GOLF
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SINGAPORE HOCKEY FEDERATION TOURNAMENT 2015
Hockey history was created at SCC in 2015 as both the men’s 
and ladies’ teams earned the Gold medal at the Singapore 
Hockey Federation (SHF) Division One National League. This 
has also been the most successful year for Hockey as the 
other SCC teams emerged in the following positions in their 
respective SHF League Competition:

 • Men’s 2nd Division emerged as Runner-Up

 • Ladies’ 2nd Division (4th Position)

 • Men’s 3rd Division (5th Position)

 • Men’s 4th Division (4th Position)

In the National Junior Division One League Competition, both 
SCC U19 boys and girls found themselves in a tough trial 
and were unplaced in the medal tally. However they have re-
grouped themselves to perform better in the 2016 tournament 
by undergoing vigorous regular training at MOE Evans ground 
under the Club’s Chief Coach Kanan. Both the boys and girls 
are poised for honours in the 2016 season.

HOCKEY LA-LIGA 2015
SCC XI retained their championship status once again at the 
Ladies’ Hockey La-Liga 2015 Competition. 

21ST SCC INTERNATIONAL HOCKEY 6S 2015
At the 21st SCC International Hockey 6s 2015, both the 
men’s and ladies’ teams managed to get a berth into the 
Cup competition semi-finals. However both teams lost to the 
eventual Cup winners in their respective semi-finals game. In 
the same tournament, SCC ladies’ XI team Captain Catherine 
Wheeler was named the Ladies’ Player of the Tournament. To 
sum up, a creditable performance by both the SCC men’s and 
ladies’ teams in the keenly contested Hockey 6s competition. 

TRAINING
Trainings are conducted on Tuesdays and Thursdays at Delta 
and MOE Evans respectively from 8pm till 10pm under the 
supervision of Head Coach Kanan Packrisamy from True Blue 
Consultants Pte Ltd.

TOURS
The following tours were undertaken by the Section in 2015.

 • Bangkok – RBSC Tournament in December
 • Jakarta – ISCI Tournament in May

HOCKEY

Hockey Committee 2015/16

Elected 7 Nov 2015

Convenor
K. Rajaram

Men’s Captain
Jamie W B Chambers

Ladies’ Captain
Catherine Wheeler

Secretary
Martijn de Blauwe

Ladies’ Social Secretary
Geer Langezaal

Men’s Social Secretary
Sean Chen

Treasurer
Mathavan Devadas

JSM Representative
Liu Shiying

Committee Members
Intekhab Khan
Pauline Appleyard
Marc Kramer
Rhian Frizler
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FRIENDLY MATCHES WITH TOURING TEAMS
Between January to December 2015, the Club had friendly 
matches with the following touring teams.

 • Mazenod College on 4 April
 • Royal Air Force Hockey Association (UK) on 9 May
 • Bradfield College on 3 July
 • Kingswood School (UK) on 18 August

ANNUAL HOCKEY AWARDS NIGHT 
The Section’s Annual Awards Night was held together with 
the Section’s Annual Dinner Night on 7 November 2015 at the 
Padang Restaurant. Awards were given away during dinner to 
deserving individuals in the Section.

Singapore Hockey Federation Division One Champion 2015 - SCC Mens XI

Singapore Hockey Federation Division One Champion 2015 - SCC Womens XI

YOUTH DEVELOPMENT
The Club has set up a Hockey Academy to groom young 
players for future development of hockey at the Club with Chief 
Coach Kanan overseeing the project. Currently about 38 kids 
between the ages of 6 to 16 are undergoing training regularly.

NATIONAL TEAM 
Emily Chan was selected to don the state colours once again 
for the 28th SEA Games 2015.

K. Rajaram
Hockey Convenor
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SPORTS SECTION NETBALL

2015 has been by far the most challenging year for the Netball 
Section since our resurgence brought about by a myriad of 
factors – some good and some otherwise.

The year started very strong with an expansion of the Section, 
entering three ladies’ teams into the SCC league but that 
soon changed. We saw the departure of half of our First Team 
players some with very exciting news of pregnancies and 
others having relocated to other countries.

We also lost our courts at SCC for most of the year which was 
a significant setback to the Section to keep trainings going at 
inconvenient locations and even dipping morale with socials 
becoming increasingly hard to organise. Coupling the loss of 
our courts with increased sports membership fees, we saw 
another wave of departures with players not being able to 
justify costs with the lack of facilities.

2015 was definitely a year of change as the old guard stepped 
down mid 2015 during the Netball AGM with fresh faces 
stepping up to steer the Section through troubled waters. 
Needless to say, the Committee was facing an uphill task to 
keep the Section together and keep enough players to field 
two teams in competitions. All was not lost last year and we 
saw plenty of good netballing action on and off the courts and 
great initiatives by the Section kept alive. 

We managed to keep our JSM Carnival going despite having 
to conduct this off-site at Sengkang Community Centre while 

our courts remained out of action. A highly successful event 
annually, it was no different this year with over 10 teams across 
the under 15s and 17s participating in the friendly competition.

The day saw some brilliant performances from the teams and 
most importantly great sportsmanship from everyone. This 
initiative started as a way to encourage youth netball in the 
Singapore scene and has also seen an increased interest, from 
Junior Sports Members in our Netball Section.

Our very own SCC League also expanded in 2015 to three 
divisions. This is another SCC-led initiative which kicked-off 
four years ago to provide more tournament playing time as 
the main league organised by Netball Singapore only lasts 
between six to eight weeks. The tournament has now seen 
significant growth and increased popularity with a format that 
stretches the season for three months allowing teams to hone 
their team play and strategies.
 
Our tours also carried on in 2015 with Bangkok in May and 
Bali in October. The Bangkok tour in 2015 had been the most 
successful yet, performance-wise. The SCC touring team 
walked away as runner-up in the yearly Club tournament 
organised by the Bangkok Southerners team. It was a great 
effort all round by the team from the senior players to our JSMs. 
The Bali tour was our first JSM tour – subscribed by nine of our 
very enthusiastic JSMs. This presented an opportunity for our 
juniors to hone their skills playing against some good overseas 
clubs.

NETBALL

Netball Committee 2015/16

Elected 23 Jun 2015

Convenor
Sadaf Whiskin

Captain
Alice Harkness

Secretary
Penny Hands

Treasurer
Fiona Chesney

JSM Representative 
Nanthini Visvalingam

Committee Member
Mads Marriage 
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TEAM REPORTS

HAWKS
The Hawks came into 2015 with a number of new players 
with very strong team skills. The SCC League leveraged as 
a warm-up leading into our main National League providing 
a good training ground for the team to gel. While always 
finishing on the podium, the Hawks failed to clinch a 
title here.

The start of the National League in 2015 was 
postponed till July instead of the usual date in late May 
due to the SEA Games. In that space of time, the Hawks 
started losing players from pregnancies to relocations. 

We entered the League with many changes in the team 
again and this proved challenging for a team that was gelling 
well in the lead up to the National League. The Hawks ended 
the season mid-table but with much drive to come back 
stronger in 2016. 

EAGLES
The Eagles had a great year in 2015 clinching medal position 
in the SCC League. Made up of a mix of very young and some 
very senior players, the team balanced themselves well and 
breezed through the season to the second spot. 

The changes in the Hawks for the National League inevitably 
affected the Eagles who had to feed players to the Hawks. They 
too started the season with a new team that needed to gel very 
quickly. Picking up some great wins during the tournament, the 
team ended up wrought with injured players and also ended up 
mid-table at the end of the season. 

FALCONS
The SCC Falcons, our mixed team, only had one season in 
2015, the Mixed Social League. Playing in Division 1 of the 
league, the team was off to a great start with a squad of players 
sometimes being over-subscribed. As the league progressed, 
we struggled for male players and had to forfeit some games. 
But the team put up a great performance with some strong 
female players in the mix and great play from the men as well.

We also witnessed less tournaments organised as Netball 
Singapore focused its time and resources on the national team 
with the SEA Games and Netball World Cup held in 2015. It 
was a year of consolidation all round for the Netball Section. 
However, with the commitment of our coaches, we saw 
improvements in the teams’ game play raising the bar as we 
moved into 2016. 

At the same time, we’d like to recognise the efforts of and 
thank the SCC Sports Department, specifically Thipa Mogan 
and Janet Ng as they continued assisting the Section and 
doing a fantastic job of the increased logistics coordination 
throughout 2015 when we lost our courts at the SCC. Special 
thanks also go to our Chairman, Games Control Board, 
Richard Stapley-Oh, and Members of the General Committee 
who have supported the Netball Section.

With our courts back at SCC and a renewed vigour within the 
Section, the Committee is focused on growing the Netball 
Section in 2016 from creating a winning team to enhancing 
integration of the Section within the Club. We look forward to 
a better year in 2016 and welcome the support of the Club in 
pursuing our objectives for the year. 

Sadaf Whiskin
Netball Convenor

End-of-season Awards Night & Party

SPORTS SECTION NETBALL
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In 2015 Rugby Section has continued the development of its 
leadership and coaching teams with a focus on developing 
junior rugby (ages 16 to 23), especially bringing young 
Singaporean players into the Section. The Section has 
benefited from this by being able to field teams with a great 
mix of combined experiences, ages and backgrounds. The 
sporting results have been outstanding.
 
The beginning of 2015 saw the SCC dominate the Singapore 
Men’s League, with an unprecedented all Black and Gold 
final on 7 February, with four SCC teams in the Conference, 
Championship and Premiership finals. The Societe Generale 
SCC Lions and Tankards came out victorious, with the Societe 
Generale SCC Prems missing out narrowly 8-14 to Wanderers.

The post-season was the time of touring. A strong 10s side 
flew to Hong Kong in March with some great results for the 
squad, although the Chinese Army 7s squad put an end to 
their ambitions.

June saw the Societe Generale SCC Nomads travel to Vietnam 
for the Club’s debut tour, to play the Saigon Geckos. The 
Geckos put up a good effort but couldn’t hold out against the 
Nomads finest XV.

In July, Singapore rugby saw the birth of a brand new force 
– the Societe Generale SCC Colts. The brand new Under 23 
side, put together by long-time SCC Members Suhaimi Amran 
and Bryan Lim, stormed into the rugby scene winning the SRU 
Youth Club Sevens tournament. The Colts are one of the most 
important developments in this Club’s rugby history as they 
draw on a previously under-tapped pool of young Singaporean 
players from all walks of life. They also provide an important 
bridge from the SCC Academy into the senior teams, making 
the Club a rugby club for all ages.

September saw the annual Hong Kong tour to play Valley (and 
Hong Kong Football Club’s tour to Singapore) which turned 
into a particularly bruising encounter, with only our Growlers 
side really looking like they could clinch a win. It was clear that 
the standard of club rugby in Hong Kong keeps getting better, 

and it’s a lesson for all clubs in Singapore, especially ours, 
that we really need to up our game to stay competitive 

in the higher levels of Asian rugby.

SCC emerged Plate runner-up at the 68th edition of 
the Societe Generale SCC 7s

RUGBY

Rugby Committee 2015/16

Elected 26 May 2015

Convenor
Marc Lansonneur

Captain
Sam Sharpe

Secretary
Matthew Love

Treasurer
Stuart Watson

Social Secretary 
Joshua Sims

JSM Representative
Bryan Lim

Committee Members 
Terence Noe
David Griffiths
Brendan Nolan
Rick Watkins
Jonathan Leow
Mike Cosnett
Nick Passi
Ben Chesney
Rishi Chandiok

SPORTS SECTION RUGBY
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SPORTS SECTION RUGBY

By October, the Singapore men’s season started, under a new 
format. With five teams in the competition, the SCC along 
with the other big clubs were really stretched. This took a toll 
on reigning Conference Champions, the Lions who, with the 
Club’s younger players playing Colts, and a number of their 
players being required to fill in in the higher grades, had a 
rough time of it.

The Prems had an interesting start to the season; despite 
losing one pool game to last year’s champions Wanderers, the 
Prems pulled out a cracking win in the Cup final to beat the 
same Wanderers team on 4 December, 18-0. 

In the Conference League, the Societe Generale SCC Growlers 
have really come together as a squad this year, and narrowly 
missed winning the Conference title in a close final against 
Wanderers.

The Societe Generale SCC Tankards beat Oldham and won the 
Championship, league and shield for the third year in a row.

Last but not least, the Societe Generale SCC International 
Rugby 7s, in its 68th Edition, had been another great event of 
high quality rugby, with awesome development teams joining 
the show such as England, France and South Africa.

The Societe Generale SCC 7s team achieved great result 
by reaching the Plate final for the first time in many years, 
unfortunately losing to the national Papua New Guinea side. It 
was a great achievement by the players and the coaching team 
of Matt Singer, Casey Mee and Simon Etheridge.
     
The Rugby Section wishes to thank the Club, its staff, the 
General Committee and the Games Control Board Chairman 
who have been very supportive in this very busy and successful 
year.

Marc Lansonneur 
Rugby Convenor

Sam Sharpe
Rugby Captain

Societe Generale SCC Growlers, Conference Runner-up

Societe Generale SCC Lions, Conference Champions

Societe Generale SCC Prems, Premiership Champions

Societe Generale SCC Tankards celebrating their win at the Championship Grand Final

@ SingaporeMaven

@SingaporeMaven
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SPORTS SECTION SOCCER

The Section had an outstanding year in 2014/15 with all of the 
teams being strong and competitive.

The First Team continues to go from strength to strength 
and has been playing friendly matches against S-League 
opposition and more than holding their own. They retained the 
Cosmo League and League Cup and remain the team to beat 
in both competitions. 

The Tigers, managed by Luke Diaz, in the ESPZEN Division 1, 
will now function as a development squad team for developing 
young players for the First Team.

The Saturday SCC Strollers who play in the Equatorial Football 
League Division 1 under the leadership of Michael Drake, 
Ronnie Smollet, Bruce Loggie and Piers Bourke has also done 
well.

The Pads also had a strong year, culminating in the annual 
Henrik Lorenz Memorial game in Phuket. I would like to thank 
everyone involved with what was considered the biggest and 
certainly most “emotional-fun” tour to Phuket by all accounts. 
Each and every one of them conducted themselves with huge 
credit to the club in relation to the Youth Football Home (YFH) 
orphanage and their amazing kids.

Sadly the Pads lost the match 2-3 in what was an amazing 
game of football. We took our 26 squad members (fit and 
injured) to Phuket and 23 played and contributed 110%. The 
Pads came back from 0-3 to almost do the impossible and 
steal a draw against what was probably the strongest HKFC 
team that has been sent to Phuket.
 
A special mention to Glyn for managing the team throughout 
the year and I hope we can retain the trophy in the coming 
weeks. 

The spirited Lions team is run by Terk Lee and assisted by Tony 
Moore to ensure that Thursday night football is competitive 
and enjoyable.

Our Thirds, running smoothly under the new leadership of 

Soccer Committee 2014/15

SOCCER

Elected 11 Nov 2014

Convenor
Scott Starr

Captain
Owen Monaghan

Secretary
Dominic Lane

Treasurer
Rodd Harrison

JSM Representative
Ravi Krishnan

Committee Member/ 
Vice-Captain
Ronnie Smollet

SCC International Soccer 6s 2015



ANNUAL REPORT 2015 69

SCC U16 vs Hougang Prime League

SCC Firsts, Cup Winners at the SCC International Soccer 6s 2015

Aman Bajaj and Vincent Lawrence enjoyed a successful year 
as can be seen by their regular after-match celebrations on 
Wednesday nights.  

The NFL Team under the astute leadership of Chris Pereira 
managed to finish their season undefeated and in turn were 
promoted from the NFL Division 2 league. A great achievement 
but all involved. We will be looking to strengthen the squad 
next year in Division 1. 

The Youth Academy run by Owen Monaghan continues to run 
well in the hope that the SCC is already training our future 
stars of the Padang! I would like personally to thank Owen 
for running the First Team as well as for all the boundless 
energy and enthusiasm he puts into the job week after week, 
alongside his management team of Luke Diaz and Andrew 
Hutcheon. I am sure everyone would agree that Owen and the 
team have done a fantastic job in recruitment numerous high 
quality players for the SCC.

TOURS
We sent two teams to this year’s Soccer Sevens in Hong 
Kong to participate in the Hong Kong Football Club (HKFC) 
tournament. Our Open Team performed well against very 
strong opposition, including Manchester City. The team 
eventually lost out to HKFC in the quarter final of the plate 
competition on penalties.

The Masters Team did very well under the management of 
PJ Roberts; only losing out to Wallsend Boys Club 1-0 in the 
semi-finals. We enjoy this tournament immensely and look 
forward to participating again in 2016.

SCC SOCCER SIXES
This tournament has evolved over the previous years and is 
now regarded as one of the marquee sporting events of the 
Singapore Cricket Club as it continues in its aim to raise 
the profile and standards of Asian football, aided by the 
introduction of professional teams from around the globe. The 
aim of this competition is to highlight the many talents of Asian 
football, and its promising young players; all within the format 
of six-a-side football.

This year saw the SCC enter three teams in the Open 
tournament; Firsts, NFL and the newly formed U18 team. They 
were joined by local Singaporean teams as well as teams from 
Hong Kong, Thailand and Malaysia.

The Masters Tournament had two SCC select teams that 
were joined by 14 other teams which included many former 
international players including Lee Sharpe and Aleksandar 
Duric.

The Youth Tournament was inspired by the late Henrik Lorenz, 
a dear friend of the SCC. Henrik founded the Youth Football 
Home in Phuket which became the first team to take part in 
the Soccer 6s Youth Tournament.

They were joined by Phnom Penh Crown Club, winners of the 
last two editions of the Soccer 6s with a chance at an historic 
“three-peat”, and last year’s finalists Youth Football Home 
(Phuket). The YFH Phuket also created history by including 
three girls in their 2015 squad.
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SPORTS SECTION SOCCER

U10s team in Phuket with Coach HutcheonSCC Tigers - Colin Gunn (16 years old)

The other teams who participated were the Bali Sports 
Foundation, Rumah Faith Malaysia and the Muhammadiyah 
Welfare Home from Singapore. Most of these children come 
from underprivileged backgrounds and many have never 
travelled beyond their own villages, let alone abroad, so to 
them, this was an experience of a lifetime.

The Youth Tournament was eventually won by the YFH Phuket 
against Muhammadiyah Welfare Home 4-0.

The Masters Tournament was eventually won by CLA All Stars 
against Club ITE 4-2.

The Open Tournament was eventually won by SCC Firsts 
against Kwarta FC for the club’s inaugural win in their own 
tournament.

Finally, I give my sincere thanks, on behalf of the section, to all 
parties who had made the tournament possible. The very kind 
sponsors C. Melchers GMBH & Co. for Raymond Weil, Creative 
Lighting Asia and Asia Pacific Breweries for their belief and 
support, the Tournament Organising Committee for all the hard 
work and time they sacrificed over nine months, the General 
Committee, the committed staff of the Singapore Cricket Club 
to support the Committee along every turn, the volunteers 
throughout the Tournament and lastly to the participants and 
team representatives. It was a truly great tournament and we 
now look forward to our 2016 event later in the year.

Thanks to everyone involved in running the football teams at 
the SCC and special thanks to the Sports Department who do 
a superb job in organising our facilities every week. 

Just wanted to thank the Section Committee for their support 
the last year and to all the staff at the SCC who do all the work 
to allow us to play. A special thanks indeed to Owen, Matt, 
Ronnie, Dom, Rodd and Ravi who did so much work behind 
the scenes to help me. A real team dedicated to the SCC. 

Finally, as this is my last update to the Section, I wanted to 
reiterate our key goals, that is:

 • To have strong, competitive teams in the weekend NFL/
Cosmo/ESPZEN/Equatorial Leagues and to maintain 
the social fabric of the Section through midweek SCC 
Lions, Pads and Thirds Teams;

 • To fulfil Interport fixtures and tours;

 • To run a Sixes Tournament that has economic viability;

 • To have a successful Soccer Academy with the develop 
youth for progression into all of our squads

Scott Starr
Soccer Convenor
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Squash’s year starts in January with the usual dash to get 
teams submitted to Singapore Squash for the start of the 
National Squash Leagues. With 13 teams and around 100 
players it is quite a feat to bring it all together.

We had teams in nine out of the 10 grades – three teams in 
Men’s A, two in Men’s C and two in Ladies’ Division 1.

Results – The Men’s A Grade emerged champions, which 
was a noteworthy achievement considering we spread our 
A  graders out over three teams. The Men’s B Grade also 
emerged champions. This was an especially sweet result 
since the team was mostly made up of juniors who only the 
year before had been C graders. We also got third place in 
the Men’s C grade with another team of juniors who showed 
a lot of commitment to SCC, especially when they had exams 
during the latter half of the league. We thank all players and 
captains for their support.

Over 70 people attended our End of League Dinner in August 
at The Padang Restaurant. Our 2015 Club Champion is 
Vivian Rhamanan and runner-up, Anders Yeo. Divison 1 winner 
was Sandip Talukdar and runner-up was Wilfred Walsh. Thanks 
to Robbie Lyons for organising this event.

Socially we hosted the Hollandse Club in August winning 
back The Orange Bowl. We were away to The British Club 
in September and The American Club. The result was a win 
against The British Club and a loss to The American Club.
 

The Cosmo League ran from August through to November and 
this we year we came third. 

In April we hosted a schoolboy team from Kearnsey College 
from South Africa who were on an Asian Tour.

World Squash Day was in October and we did our usual fun 
games over the afternoon.

The Annual Pot Games against Tanglin Club was in October, 
which we won.

Squash participated in the inter-section events – Ladies’ Darts 
which we won, came in second at the Inter-section Darts 
Competition and won the Annual Inter-section Quiz Night. We 
also played the annual Squash versus Cricket Sat X1 cricket 
match at Dempsey.

In March we welcomed teams from Calcutta Rackets 
Club (CRC) and Madras Cricket Club (MCC) for the 21st 
Triangular Cup Tournament. It was a very busy weekend and 
we managed to win the Cup beating CRC 4-3 and MCC 5-2.

In May we sent five teams to the HKFC 3s Teams Tournament, 
and then in September we embarked on our first ever tour 
to China choosing Shanghai as our destination. We had 15 
players and four supporters and played two matches against 
local clubs who had very enthusiastic players.

Squash Committee 2015/16

SQUASH 

Elected 19 Jun 2015

Convenor
Andrea Nicholas

Secretary
Brian Van Ginkel

Treasurer
Ashley Nicholas

Men’s Captain
Manmindar Singh

Ladies’ Captain
Eleanor Tan

Committee Members
Mahes Velupillai
Rahul Khare

SPORTS SECTION SQUASH
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SPORTS SECTION SQUASH 

SCC Juniors at HKFC 3s Tournament 2015, with World No. 10 Annie Au

Shanghai Tour

In November after about three years we managed to get 
Royal Selangor Club down for our interport match playing for 
the Chiam Tow San Trophy. They brought a team of familiar 
faces and some juniors. We won the matches 5-2.

The highlight for sports in Singapore last year had to be the 
28th SEA Games in June. SCC was represented in squash by 
Joannah Yue, Vivian Rhamanan, Mao Shi Yuan and Bryan Koh. 
Vivian was one half of the Gold medal winning Jumbo Doubles 
team, while the men’s team won Silver and Bryan an individual 
Bronze. The ladies won a team Bronze and Shi Yuan an 
individual bronze medal. Not long after the SEA Games 
finished, Vivian announced his decision to turn professional. 
This makes him the only full time squash player in Singapore.

Mao Shi Yuan & Bryan Koh at the SEA Games Vivian Rhamanan

Squash was very lucky this past year compared to almost 
every other sport played at SCC – we still had our courts and 
were able to complete our full agenda of events and Section 
activities. 

Thanks to the Squash Committee, Sports Department, 
GM  Nigel  Stearns, Chairman Games Control Board, 
Richard  Stapley-Oh and the General Committee for their 
support over the past year.

Andrea Nicholas
Squash Convenor

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB72



ANNUAL REPORT 2015 73

SPORTS SECTION TENNIS

2015 was not an easy year for the Club especially for the 
Tennis Section as the National Day celebrations took centre 
court, in fact all our courts. We did try and carry on as best 
as we could at our temporary venue at Savitar Tennis Centre 
(Fairmont Hotel) made available for us but it just was not home 
and we did see the numbers for our Friday night social dip 
slightly. However, we thank everyone for their patience.

Early in the year we bid farewell to the grass courts where the 
members had their last hit on the surface as when we get the 
courts back, our new artificial surface would be laid. There 
was some sadness among the Members as the grass would 
be replaced due to increasing difficulty to maintain. With the 
courts being closed for maintenance for approximately 
12 weeks a year, we desperately needed a new surface.

We also had to cancel our tour to Bangkok this year due to 
the turmoil in Thailand earlier this year. Also in December, an 
SGM for the Tennis Section was held as Fiona Pilling (Tennis 
Convenor elected on 25 August 2015) was leaving the Club 
and had to step down. After doing such a great job while in the 
position it was not easy to replace her and we wish her well in 
the future.

While the Tennis action may have been limited on the 
courts this year we did manage to meet-up for a couple of 
evenings to watch the Australian Open and Wimbledon at 
Stumps. Many  thanks to the Committee Members on hand 
for organising.

The WTA final was also held in Singapore for the second year 
and this event certainly creates a buzz and can only be good 
for the sport in Singapore. As we continue with our junior 
programmes one would hope that one day we will have a 
representative not only from Asia, but Singapore.

However despite the lack of courts the club managed 
some successes.

Momentary farewell to our tennis courts to make way for the 50th National Day 
celebrations!

Tennis Committee 2015/16

TENNIS
Elected 24 Aug 2015

Convenor
Kevin Cumbers
Elected 15 Dec 2015

Men’s Captain
Soenke Langhoff

Ladies’ Captain
Nilma Missir

Secretary
Sophie Mougel

Treasurer
Amit Gupta

JSM Representative
Gilbert Ng

Committee Member
Campbell Hinton
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Cheering on the finalists of the Australian Open

(L to R) Nilma (2015 Sports Woman of the Year), Rehmat (2013/14 Sports Girl of 
the Year), Khee Yen (2015 Sports Girl of the Year) and Shao Fang (outstanding 
‘firepower’ to the team)

Melissa Pine whipping the juniors into shape!

HIGHLIGHTS FROM THIS YEAR’S TENNIS SEASON

 • We welcomed some new lady juniors to the Singapore 
Cricket Club tennis team and in their debut tournament 
in the inter-club Singles league, we are glad to mention 
that the junior-adult combination led to the runner-up 
position in the Ladies’ B Singles league.

 • The Ladies’ A team overcame the haze and multiple 
delays to emerge runner-up in inter-club Doubles 

 • We won the Annual Pot Games against Tanglin Club.

 • The Men’s A emerged as runner-up in the inter-club 
Singles.

 • Wee Khee Yen, our junior also represented Singapore in 
the SEA Games in June last year.

 • The Tennis Section also attained some honourable 
mentions at the SCC Annual Sports Awards, with Wee 
Khee Yen named Sports Girl of the Year and Nilma 
Missir-Boissac Sports Woman of the Year. 

The new surface is already up and running at the point of 
writing and hopefully new lights on the multipurpose courts will 
mean we can fully get back into the swing of things in 2016. 
We have started looking at a full calendar for 2016 with tours, 
friendlies and the reintroduction of the Club championships. 
Please keep an eye on the bulletin board for updates.

Kevin Cumbers
Tennis Convenor
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7th SCC International Soccer 6s
31 January & 1 February 2015

SPORTS EVENTS
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SPORTS EVENTS

21th SCC International Hockey 6s
28 February to 1 March 2015
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8th SCC Annual Sports Awards
15 May 2015

SPORTS EVENTS
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SPORTS EVENTS

Annual Darts Intersection Bull’s Eye Tournament
15 August 2015

Annual Golf Tournament
9 September 2015
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38th Annual Pot Games
3 October 2015

SPORTS EVENTS
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Societe Generale SCC International Rugby 7s (68th Edition)
30 October to 1 November 2015

SPORTS EVENTS

RECIPROCAL CLUBS
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SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB FS1

In accordance with a resolution of the General Committee and in the opinion of the General Committee, 
the financial statements set out on pages FS4 to FS32 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of 
the financial position of the Club as at December 31, 2015, and the financial performance, changes in 
funds and cash flows of the Club for the financial year then ended, and at the date of this statement, there 
are reasonable grounds to believe that the Club will be able to pay its debts when they fall due.

ON BEHALF OF THE GENERAL COMMITTEE

……………………………………………………………..
BALDEV SINGH S/O SOHAN SINGH
President

……………………………………………………………..
K PARASURAM S/O P KRISHNAN
Finance Member

March 11, 2016 

STATEMENT BY THE GENERAL COMMITTEE TO THE MEMBERS OF

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB
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Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Singapore Cricket Club (the “Club”) which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015, and the statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, as 
set out on pages FS4 to FS32.

General Committee’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The General Committee is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards and the Societies Act, and 
for such internal control as the General Committee determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.    In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control.    An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the General Committee, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the Singapore Financial 
Reporting Standards so as to present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Club as at 
December 31, 2015 and the financial performance, changes in funds and cash flows of the Club for the 
year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the regulations enacted under the Societies 
Act to be kept by the Club have been properly kept in accordance with those regulations.

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

March 11, 2016 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB
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Note 2015 2014
$ $

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and bank balances 5 17,286,803 18,278,062
Members’ accounts 6 1,921,067 1,755,640
Other receivables 7 2,312,184 466,038
Inventories 8     470,230      497,501
Total current assets 21,990,284 20,997,241

Non-current asset
Property, plant and equipment 9 24,197,402 24,312,616

Total assets 46,187,686 45,309,857

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 10 5,456,603 4,457,488
Members’ deposits 11 1,256,940 1,251,978
Income tax payable 16,715 29,205
Deferred tax liability 12        11,461         7,713
Total current liabilities   6,741,719   5,746,384

Fund
Accumulated fund 13 39,445,967 39,563,473

Total liabilities and fund 46,187,686 45,309,857

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

.............................................................   ........................................................
BALDEV SINGH S/O SOHAN SINGH   K PARASURAM S/O P KRISHNAN
President       Finance Member

March 11, 2016      March 11, 2016

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31, 2015
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Note 2015 2014
$ $

Operating revenue
Subscriptions fees 5,819,733 5,946,545
Food and beverage 14 8,615,360 9,207,022
Social events 15  95,875 98,261
Sports and recreation 16   2,590,723 2,920,533
Fruit machines         175,840 164,498
Carpark       683,569 619,094
Other income 17       874,588     899,946
Total operating revenue 18,855,688 19,855,899

Less:  Operating expenditure
Food and beverage
- Cost of sales 14    (3,800,486) (4,023,064)
- Staff costs and other operating costs 14   (5,597,125) (5,399,903)
Social events 15       (384,882) (426,670)
Sports and recreation 16   (3,425,631) (3,939,881)
Management and other staff costs 18    (2,904,272) (2,871,724)
Depreciation 9    (2,036,321) (1,977,138)
Property maintenance 19  (1,066,023)  (1,076,022)
Property tax (expense) income 20 (166,858)  197,337
Office and administration 21      (313,581) (366,754)
General expenses 22      (941,874) (870,078)
Total operating expenditure (20,637,053) (20,753,897)

Operating deficit (1,781,365) (897,998)

Add:  Non-operating income

Membership transfer fees   923,000 1,442,000
Conversion fees 23 552,790 922,601
Interest from deposits      190,446      143,761

  1,666,236   2,508,362

(Deficit) Surplus for the year before income tax (115,129) 1,610,364
Less:  Income tax expense 24        (2,377)      (27,312)
(Deficit) Surplus for the year representing
   total comprehensive (loss) income for the year  (117,506)   1,583,052

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended December 31, 2015
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$

 
Balance at January 1, 2014 37,980,421

Surplus for the year, representing
   total comprehensive income for the year   1,583,052

Balance at December 31, 2014 39,563,473

Deficit for the year, representing  
   total comprehensive loss for the year     (117,506)

Balance at December 31, 2015 39,445,967

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS
Year ended December 31, 2015
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2015 2014
$ $

Operating activities
Operating deficit (1,781,365) (897,998)
Adjustments for:
 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment     2,036,321 1,977,138
 Allowance (Write back) for doubtful debts    15,542  (30,285) 
 Write off of property, plant and equipment        49,247         2,941
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital      319,745 1,051,796

Members’ accounts     (180,969) 168,596
Inventories       27,271 (186,445)
Other receivables    (1,824,099) 18,172
Trade and other payables       999,115  (1,474,626)
Cash used in operations       (658,937)     (422,507)

Income tax paid     (11,119)      (13,713)
Net cash used in operating activities     (670,056)    (436,220)

Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (1,977,729) (724,690)
Restricted cash      (73,063) (1,045,149)
Interest received       168,399      135,815
Net cash used in investing activities    (1,882,393)  (1,634,024)

Financing activities
Members’ deposits received      4,962 21,437
Membership transfer fees    923,000 1,442,000
Conversion fees     552,790 922,601
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment     7,375       933
Net cash from financing activities    1,488,127   2,386,971

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents  (1,064,322) 316,727
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 12,871,770 12,555,043
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  11,807,448 12,871,770

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following:

 Cash and bank balances (Note 5) 17,286,803 18,278,062
 Less:  Fixed deposits with maturities exceeding three months
             classified as restricted cash  (5,479,355) (5,406,292)
 Cash and cash equivalents 11,807,448 12,871,770

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended December 31, 2015
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SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

1 GENERAL

 Singapore Cricket Club (the “Club”) is registered under the Societies Act with its principal place of 
business and registered office at Connaught Drive, Singapore 179681.  The financial statements are 
expressed in Singapore dollars.

 The principal activities of the Club are to promote and carry on a sports and social club for its 
members.

 The financial statements of the Club for the year ended December 31, 2015 were authorised for 
issue by the General Committee on March 11, 2016.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
historical cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting policies below, and are drawn up in 
accordance with the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”) and the Societies Act.

 Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods 
and services.

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether 
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the 
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Club takes into account the characteristics of the asset or 
liability which market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability at 
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the financial 
statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope 
of FRS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, 
such as net realisable value in FRS 2 Inventories, or value in use in FRS 36 Impairment of Assets,.

 In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and 
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as 
follows:

 • Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

 • Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable 
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

 • Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.



SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB FS9

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS - On January 1, 2015, the Club has adopted all 
the new and revised FRSs and Interpretations of FRS (“INT FRS”) that are effective from that date 
and are relevant to its operations. The adoption of these new/revised FRSs and INT FRSs does 
not result in changes to the Club’s accounting policies and has no material effect on the amounts 
reported for the current or prior years.

 At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following FRSs are relevant to the 
Club were issued but not effective:

 • FRS 109 Financial Instruments 1

 • FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1

 1 Applies to annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early application 
permitted.

 Consequential amendments were also made to various standards as a result of these new/revised 
standards.

 The Club anticipates that the adoption of the above FRSs in future periods will not have a material 
impact on the financial statements of the Club in the period of their initial adoption.

 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Club’s 
statement of financial position when the Club becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.

 Effective interest method

 The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument 
and of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period.  The effective interest rate is the 
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of 
the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.  Income and expense is recognised 
on an effective interest rate basis for debt instruments other than those financial instruments “at fair 
value through profit or loss”.
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SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 Financial assets

 All financial assets are recognised and de-recognised on a trade date where the purchase or 
sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within 
the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus 
transaction costs except for those financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss 
which are initially measured at fair value.

 Loans and receivables

 Members’ account and other receivables which have fixed or determinable payments that are 
not quoted in an active market are classified as “loans and receivables”.  Loans and receivables 
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment.    Interest is 
recognised by applying the effective interest method, except for short-term receivables when the 
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

 Impairment of financial assets

 Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators 
of impairment at the end of each reporting period.   Financial assets are impaired where there is 
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition 
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted.

 For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

 • significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

 • default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

 • it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation

 For certain categories of financial assets, such as members’ account receivables and other 
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for 
impairment on a collective basis.  Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables 
could include the Club’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of 
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 30 days, as well as observable 
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.



SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB FS11

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between 
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at 
the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the 
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of members’ account and other 
receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.  When 
a member’s account or other receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance 
account.  Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance 
account.  Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at bank and deposits with financial 
institutions that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value.

 Derecognition of financial assets

 The Club derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another entity.  If the Club neither transfers nor retains substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Club recognises 
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.  If the 
Club retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the 
Club continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for 
the proceeds received.

 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are recognised when the Club becomes a party to the contractual agreements of 
the instrument.

 The Club’s financial liabilities include members’ deposits and trade and other payables.

 Trade and other payables, which represent the fair value of consideration for goods and services to 
be paid in the future, whether or not billed to the Club, are recognised initially at their fair value, net 
of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest 
method, except for short-term payables, where the recognition of interest would be immaterial.



SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUBFS12

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 Derecognition of financial liabilities

 The Club derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Club’s obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or they expire.

 INVENTORIES - Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Cost is 
calculated using the weighted average cost basis.  Net realisable value represents the estimated 
selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling 
and distribution.  

 LEASES - Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.  All other leases are classified as 
operating leases.

 The Club as lessee

 Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern 
in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.  Contingent rentals arising under 
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

 In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are 
recognised as a liability.  The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental 
expense on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of 
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

 The Club as lessor

 Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which use 
benefit derived from the leased asset is diminished.  Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and 
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised 
as an expense over the lease term on same basis as the lease income.
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SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

 The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import 
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset 
to its working condition and location for its intended use.   Any trade discounts and rebates are 
deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

 Depreciation is computed utilising the straight-line method to write-off the cost of these assets over 
their estimated useful lives as follows:

 Leasehold land - Clubhouse   30 years
 Leasehold office properties    27 to 36 years
 Clubhouse      Over the period of the lease
 Kitchen, restaurant and bar equipment 1 to 5 years
 Clubhouse renovations    5 years
 Air-conditioning systems   5 years
 Sports and ground equipment   5 years
 Furniture and fittings    5 years
 Fruit machines and accessories  4 years
 Computer equipment    3 years
 Other office equipment    5 years
 Motor vehicle     10 years

 The cost of leasehold office properties include a land component which has a useful life of 999 
years and is treated as a freehold land and not depreciated.

 The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end 
to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of 
economic benefits from fixed assets.  The effect of any changes in estimate is accounted for on a 
prospective basis.

 Construction-in-progress is stated at cost.    The accumulated costs will be reclassified to the 
appropriate property, plant and equipment account when the construction is substantially completed.  
Depreciation of the asset commences when the asset is ready for its intended use.
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SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 For acquisitions and disposals during the financial year, depreciation is provided from the month 
of acquisition to the month before disposal respectively.  Fully depreciated assets still in use are 
retained in the financial statements.  An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

 The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference 
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is recognised in profit or 
loss.

 IMPAIRMENT OF TANGIBLE ASSETS - At the end of each reporting period, the Club reviews the 
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those 
assets have suffered an impairment loss.  If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount 
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).  Where it 
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Club estimates the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

 Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.  In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset.

 If the recoverable amount of an asset (cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.  An impairment loss 
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

 Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating 
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years.  A reversal of an impairment 
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 PROVISIONS - Provisions are recognised when the Club has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Club will be required to settle the 
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

 The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation.  Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle 
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

 When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 
from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement 
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

 REVENUE RECOGNITION - Revenue includes subscription fees, food and beverage revenue, sports 
and recreation, revenue from fruit machines and other revenue.  

 Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred 
to the members and the amount of revenue and the costs of the transaction can be measured 
reliably.  Revenue excludes goods and services taxes and is arrived at after deduction of trade 
discounts.  No revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the 
consideration due, associated costs or the possible returns of subscription fees.

 The basis of recognition of revenue is as follows:

 (i) Subscription fees

  Subscription fees are billed one month in advance and recognised as revenue in the following 
month.

 (ii) Food and beverage

  Food and beverage are recognised as revenue when the food and beverage are consumed or 
services performed.



SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUBFS16

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 (iii) Sports and recreation 

  Sports and recreation are recognised as revenue when events are organised or services are 
rendered. 

 (iv) Member transfer fees

  Member transfer fees are recognised as revenue in the year in which the transfer of membership 
is affected upon approval of the member by the General Committee. 

 (v) Revenue from fruit machines

  Revenue from fruit machines is recognised based on gross receipts less the relevant 
government taxes, payment of winnings, hopper refills and expenses.

 (vi) Entrance fees and conversion fees

  Entrance fees and conversion fees are recognised as revenue when the new membership is 
effective upon approval of the member by the General Committee.

 (vii) Interest income from fixed deposits is accounted for on a time-apportioned basis.

 (viii) All other items of income are recognised as revenue when the services are performed.

 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS - Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are 
charged as an expense as they fall due.    Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit 
schemes, such as the Singapore Central Provident Fund, are dealt with as payments to defined 
contribution plans where the Club’s obligations under the plans are equivalent to those arising in a 
defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

 EMPLOYEE LEAVE ENTITLEMENT - Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when 
they accrue to employees.  A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result 
of services rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.
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SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 INCOME TAX - Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred 
tax.

 The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.  Taxable profit differs from surplus 
as reported in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes 
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes 
items that are not taxable or tax deductible.  The Club’s liability for current tax is calculated using 
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting 
period.

 Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.  
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred 
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available 
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to 
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

 Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability 
is settled or the asset realised.  Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation authority and the Club intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

 Current and deferred taxes are recognised as an expense or income in profit or loss.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES 
 OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

 In the application of the Club’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, the General 
Committee is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.  The estimates and 
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to 
be relevant.  Actual results may differ from these estimates.

 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.    Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both 
current and future periods.
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SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES 
 OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (cont’d)

 (a) Critical judgements in applying the Club’s accounting policies

  The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below), 
that the General Committee have made in the process of applying the Club’s accounting 
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 
statements.

  Government Receivables

  The Club has recognised a reimbursement amount of $1.36 million from the Government of 
Singapore as other receivables (Note 7). This is for the reinstatement of the Padang Field to its 
original state before the SG50 National Day Parade. The reimbursement amount approximates 
the cost and does not extend the useful life of the field. Accordingly, there is no impact to the 
property plant and equipment and profit and loss during the year.

 (b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

  The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed 
below.

  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

  Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated 
useful lives.  The General Committee estimates the useful lives of these property, plant and 
equipment to be within 1 to 36 years.  The carrying amount of the Club’s property, plant and 
equipment at December 31, 2015 was $24,197,402 (2014 : $24,312,616).   Changes in the 
expected level of usage could impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of 
these assets and therefore future depreciation charges could be revised.

  Allowance for doubtful debts

  Allowance for doubtful debts are made in the financial statements based on management’s best 
estimate of the carrying amount of receivables that are doubtful of collection after evaluation  
of collectability.  The General Committee’s judgement is required in assessing the ultimate 
realisation of these receivables including the current creditworthiness and the past collection 
history of each member.  Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such 
difference will impact the carrying value of the members’ account and other receivables 
and doubtful debts expense in the period in which such estimate has been changed.  The 
carrying amounts of the members’ account and other receivables at December 31, 2015 were 
$1,921,067 and $2,312,184 (2014 : $1,755,640 and $466,038) respectively.
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SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES 
 OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (cont’d)

 (b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

  Income taxes

  The Club recognises expected liabilities for tax based on an estimation of the likely tax due, 
which requires significant judgement as to the ultimate tax determination of certain items.  
Where actual liabilities arising from these issues differ from these estimates, such differences 
will have an impact on income tax and deferred tax provision in the period when such 
determination is made.  Details of deferred taxes and income taxes are provided in Notes 12 
and 24 respectively to the financial statements.

4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

 (a) Categories of financial instruments

  The following table sets out the financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period.

2015 2014
$ $

Financial asset

Loan and receivables 21,412,639 20,445,508

Financial liabilities

Amortised costs:
   Trade and other payables 5,456,603 4,457,488
   Members’ deposits   1,256,940   1,251,978
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SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT
 (cont’d)

 (b) Financial risk management policies and objectives

  The Club’s overall financial risk management programme seeks to minimise potential adverse 
effects of the financial performance of the Club.

  There has been no significant change to the manner in which it manages and measures the 
risk.

  (i) Interest rate risk management

   The Club’s exposure to changes in interest risk relates primarily to the short-term fixed 
deposits with financial institutions.  The interest rates for fixed deposits are disclosed in 
Note 5 to the financial statements.

   No sensitivity analysis is prepared as the Club does not expect any material effect on the 
Club’s profit or loss arising from the effects of reasonably possible changes to interest 
rates on fixed deposits with financial institutions at the end of the reporting period.  

  (ii) Credit risk management

   The Club’s principal financial assets are cash and bank balances, members’ accounts 
and other receivables.

   The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements represents 
the Club’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

   Further details of credit risks on members’ accounts are disclosed in Note 6.

   Cash and fixed deposits are placed with creditworthy banks and financial institutions 
which are regulated.

  (iii) Liquidity risk management

   The Club maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents and internally generated cash 
flows to finance its activities.

   The Club ensures that there are adequate funds to meet all its obligations in a timely and 
cost-effective manner.
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SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT
 (cont’d)

 (b) Financial risk management policies and objectives (cont’d)

  (iv) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

   The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, amount due from members and 
other current receivables and payables, provisions and other liabilities approximate 
their respective fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial 
instruments.  The fair values of other classes of financial assets and liabilities are 
disclosed in the respective notes to the financial statements.

 (c) Capital risk management policies and objectives

  The Club reviews its capital structure at least annually to ensure that the Club will be able to 
continue as a going concern.  The capital structure of the Club comprises only of accumulated 
fund.  The Club’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2014.

5 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
2015 2014

$ $

Cash at bank 3,991,203 5,100,176
Fixed deposits 12,860,942 12,755,820
Cash on hand     434,658     422,066

17,286,803 18,278,062

 Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Club and short-term bank deposits with an 
original maturity of 1 year or less.   The carrying amounts of these assets approximate their fair 
values.

 Fixed deposits bear effective interest rate range from 0.05% to 1.55% (2014 : range from 0.05% to 
1.39%) per annum and for a tenure of approximately 30 to 365 days (2014 : 30 to 365 days).
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SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

6 MEMBERS’ ACCOUNTS
2015 2014

$ $

Members’ accounts 1,951,501 1,770,532
Allowance for doubtful debts    (30,434)    (14,892)

1,921,067 1,755,640

 The average credit period is 30 days (2014 : 30 days).

 The table below is an analysis of members’ accounts during the year:
2015 2014

$ $

Not past due and not impaired 1,701,764 1,554,321
Past due but not impaired (i) 178,654 169,221
Impaired receivables - collectively assessed (ii) 71,083 46,990
Less:  Allowance for impairment   (30,434)    (14,892)

1,921,067 1,755,640

 (i) Ageing of members’ accounts that are past due but not impaired:
2015 2014

$ $

< 3 months 178,654 169,221

 (ii) These amounts are stated before any deduction for impairment losses.

 Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:
2015 2014

$ $

Balance at beginning of the year 14,892 45,177
Increase (Decrease) in allowance recognised in profit or loss 15,542 (30,285)
Balance at end of the year  30,434 14,892
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SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

7 OTHER RECEIVABLES
2015 2014

$ $

Advertising and sponsorship receivables 634,447 295,289
Government receivables 1,356,420 -      
Prepayments 107,415 54,232
Deposits 23,702 35,413
Interest receivable 67,418 45,371
Other    122,892   35,733

2,312,184 466,038

 Advertising and sponsorship receivables were not past due and not impaired and are with 
creditworthy counterparties.

8 INVENTORIES
2015 2014

$ $

Kitchen stock 125,202 67,831
Bar stocks 217,613 308,625
Sports goods and accessories 127,415 121,045

470,230 497,501
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d) 

 (a) The cost of the leasehold office properties relates to the 2 units at #09-06 and #09-07 (2014 
: 2 units at #09-06 and #09-07) at The Adelphi Office Complex and has been allocated to the 
cost of land and buildings at $6.1 million and $1.4 million (2014 : $6.1 million and $1.4 million) 
respectively. As disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the cost of the land is treated 
as freehold land and not depreciated.

10 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2015 2014

$       $

Trade payables 2,233,564 1,654,755
Accrued operating expenses 2,574,449 2,144,295
Advanced billings for subscriptions fee 594,317 494,298
Other payables      54,273    164,140

5,456,603 4,457,488

11 MEMBERS’ DEPOSITS

 These represent non-interest bearing deposits received from members. These deposits are 
refundable upon sale of membership or resignation.

12 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

 This represents timing differences in respect of interest receivable.

 The movement for the year in the deferred tax liability was as follows:
2015 2014

$ $

At beginning of the year 7,713 6,362
Charge to profit or loss (Note 24) 3,748 1,351
At end of the year 11,461 7,713
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13 ACCUMULATED FUND 

 In accordance with Club Rule 62(b), in the event of the Club being dissolved, all debts and liabilities 
shall be fully discharged and the remaining funds divided equally among the Ordinary and Life 
Members except those portions of such remaining funds which are monies earned or identified as 
income or profit from the use of fruit machines and/or from any other approved private lottery as 
defined under the Private Lotteries Act, Chapter 250, 1985 Ed, which shall be donated to approved 
charities in Singapore. 

 Based on available records, it has been ascertained that as at December 31, 2015, the cumulative 
surplus derived from the operation of fruit machines and other approved private lotteries is $15.754 
million (2014 : $15.577 million) before taking into account cumulative capital expenditure of $1.509 
million (2014 : $1.454 million) incurred in generating this surplus, and the allocation of the Club’s 
general overheads.

14 FOOD AND BEVERAGE 
2015 2014

$ $

Sales 8,615,360 9,207,022
Cost of sales (3,800,486) (4,023,064)
Gross profit 4,814,874 5,183,958
   Less:
      Staff costs
      - Salaries, wages, allowances and CPF contributions 4,404,696 4,169,964
      - Other staff costs 264,784 282,593
      - Government grants - Wage Credit and Special Employment
          Credit Scheme, offset against staff costs (113,433)     (81,395)

4,556,047 4,371,162
Utilities, maintenance and expenses 1,041,078 1,028,741
Depreciation of kitchen, restaurant and bar equipment   49,952       56,747
Operating deficit for the year   (832,203)   (272,692)
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15  SOCIAL EVENTS
2015 2014

$ $

Ticket sales/Participation Fees 95,875 98,261
   Less:
      Staff costs
      - Salaries, wages, allowances and CPF contributions 81,864 78,493
      - Other staff costs 425 3,230
      - Government grants - Wage Credit and Special Employment  
          Credit Scheme, offset against staff costs (2,791)     -

79,498 81,723
Operating expenses  305,384   344,947
Operating deficit for the year (289,007) (328,409)

16 SPORTS AND RECREATION 
2015 2014

$ $

Tournament income 695,874 1,159,908
Sports sections income 671,179 766,599
Sports membership fees  342,000 446,500
Booking fees 11,564 14,316
Rental of facilities and other income    870,106    533,210
Total income 2,590,723 2,920,533
   Less:
      Tournament expenditure 895,887 1,223,454
      Sports sections expenditure 718,887 874,827
      Games expenditure 415,965 362,052
      Rental of facility - Dempsey field  204,528 199,621
      Staff costs
      - Salaries, wages, allowances and CPF contributions 848,800 842,089
      - Other staff costs
      - Government grants - Wage Credit and Special 
          Employment Credit Scheme, offset against staff costs

39,965

(33,262)

37,753

   (18,145)

855,503 861,697
Utilities, maintenance and expenses  334,861 418,230
Depreciation of sports and ground equipment    181,742    204,998
Operating deficit for the year (1,016,650) (1,224,346)
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17 OTHER INCOME
2015 2014

$ $

SCC Night Race Fiesta Event 705,443 733,829
Office rental income 33,250      -     
Others 135,895 166,117

874,588 899,946
 
 The majority portion of unit #09-06 is used for the Club’s daily operations and only a small portion 

of the unit is rented out to external tenant from March 2015 to August 2016.

18 MANAGEMENT AND OTHER STAFF COSTS
2015 2014

$ $

Salaries, wages, allowances and CPF contributions 2,850,914 2,770,360
Other staff costs 164,006 177,444
Government grants – Wage Credit and Special 
  Employment Credit Scheme, offset against staff costs  (110,648)    (76,080)

2,904,272 2,871,724

 Total staff costs included in Notes 14, 15, 16 and 18 comprise:
2015 2014

$ $

Salaries, wages, allowances and CPF contributions 8,186,274 7,860,906
Other staff costs 469,180 501,020
Government grants - Wage Credit, Special and Temporary 
Employment  Credit Scheme, offset against staff costs  (260,134)

 
 (175,620)

8,395,320 8,186,306

 The number of employees as at December 31, 2015 of 161 (2014 : 173) includes full time staff 
whose costs of $72,896 (2014 : $80,986) were included under the fruit machine expenses.
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19 PROPERTY MAINTENANCE 
2015 2014

$ $

Facilities maintenance and equipment rental 31,853 33,442
Repairs and replacements 372,054 336,002
Utilities and related expenses 492,723 544,836
Security expenses 132,000 125,540
Maintenance fees and sinking fund     37,393     36,202

1,066,023 1,076,022

20 PROPERTY TAX EXPENSE (INCOME)
2015 2014

$ $

The Clubhouse and Padang Field at Connaught Drive 211,783 283,400
Office Unit #09-07 at The Adelphi Office Complex  18,550  13,783
Office Unit #09-06 at The Adelphi Office Complex   13,225   11,700

243,558 308,883
Less:  Property Tax Reduction  (76,700) (506,220)

166,858 (197,337)

 During the year, the Inland Revenue Authority of Singapore has reviewed the Club’s appeal against 
the annual value of leasehold land of the Clubhouse and Padang Field at Connaught Drive and 
has revised the assessments for years 2014 and 2015, resulting in a reduction in Property Tax of 
$76,700 for year 2014 and a revised Property Tax of $212,800 with effect from March 1, 2015.   

21 OFFICE AND ADMINISTRATION 
2015 2014

$ $

Telephone and postage 49,307 61,034
Printing and stationery 38,832 60,832
Computer expenses and lease rental of office equipment 133,891 104,540
Allowance for doubtful debts (Bad debts written back) 15,542 (30,285)
Professional fees   76,009 170,633

313,581 366,754
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22 GENERAL EXPENSES
2015 2014

$ $

Audit fees 22,000 21,000
Annual report 24,000 9,595
Insurance 92,663 91,188
Newspapers and periodicals 20,921 14,273
Padang magazine publication 39,687 44,783
Bank charges 71,976 73,763
Meeting and election nights 128,203 144,691
SCC night race fiesta event costs 361,261 346,740
Minor items of capital expenditure expensed 44,465 49,987
Write off of property, plant and equipment 49,247 2,941
Other expenses  87,451   71,117

941,874 870,078

23 CONVERSION FEES

 In 2014, the Club made a one-time offer to convert Ordinary Membership to Ordinary Transferable 
Membership. A total of 122 responses were received for the conversion exercise.

24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
2015 2014

$ $

Current taxation 16,715 29,204
Overprovision in prior year (18,086) (3,243)
Deferred tax (Note 12)    3,748  1,351

2,377  27,312

 Domestic income tax is calculated at 17% (2014 : 17%) of the estimated assessable profit for the 
year.
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24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (cont’d)

 The total charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting (deficit) surplus as follows:

2015 2014
$ $

(Deficit) Surplus for the year before income tax (115,129) 1,610,364

Tax (benefit) expense at income tax rate (19,572) 273,762
Non-deductible items (Non-taxable items) 22,470 (269,132)
Exempt income 17,565 25,925
Overprovision in prior year (18,086)     (3,243)

    2,377     27,312

 The Club is exempted from income tax in accordance with Section 11(1) of the Income Tax Act  
Chapter 134 as more than 50% of the Club’s gross takings are from its voting members. The 
income tax expense in 2015 and 2014 relate to income tax payable on income received by the Club 
which is not related to the operating activities of the Club.

25 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 
2015 2014

$ $

Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised
 as an expense in the year 231,708 228,007

 At the end of the reporting period, the Club was committed to making the following lease rental 
payments as follows:

2015 2014
$ $

Within one year 232,980 233,580
In the second to fifth years inclusive 249,109 383,817

482,089 617,397

 Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for the Dempsey Field and Office Equipment 
and are negotiated for an average term of 3 to 5 years (2014 : 3 to 5 years).
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26 RECLASSIFICATIONS AND COMPARATIVE FIGURES

 Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year’s financial statements to enhance 
comparability with the current year’s financial statements. 

 As a result, certain items have been amended on the face of the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. 

 These items were reclassified as follows: 

 
Previously After
Reported Reclassification reclassification

12.31.2014 12.31.2014 12.31.2014
$ $ $

Operating revenue
Social events - 98,261 98,261

Operating expenditure
Food and beverage
  - Staff costs and other operating costs (5,728,312) 328,409 (5,399,903)
Social events - (426,670) (426,670)

(5,728,312) (98,261) (5,826,573)

Total (5,728,312) - (5,728,312)
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AUSTRALIA

Adelaide

The Adelaide Club
165 North Terrace, Adelaide, South 
Australia 5000 Australia

Naval, Military and Air Force Club of 
South Australia
111 Hutt Street, Adelaide, South Australia 
5000 Australia

Brisbane

Queensland Cricketers’ Club
Ground Floor Gabba Towers, 411 Vulture 
Street, East Brisbane Qld 4169 Australia

Tattersall’s Club Brisbane
215 Queen Street Brisbane Q 4001 
Australia

United Service Club Queensland
183 Wickham Terrace Brisbane 
Queensland 4000 Australia

Melbourne

Athenaeum Club
87 Collins Street Melbourne Victoria 3000 
Australia

Kooyong Lawn Tennis Club Inc.
489 Glenferrie Road, Kooyong Victoria 
3144, Australia

Melbourne Club
36 Collins Street Melbourne VIC 3000 
Australia

Melbourne Cricket Club
Gate 2, Melbourne Cricket Ground, 
Brunton Avenue, Jolimont St. East 
Melbourne Victoria 3002, Australia

Melbourne Savage Club
12 Bank Place, Melbourne, Victoria 3000 
Australia

Royal South Yarra Lawn Tennis Club
310 Williams Road North, Toorak Victoria 
3142, Australia

Sydney

City Tattersalls’ Club
194-204 Pitt Street Sydney NSW 2000 
Australia

Cricketers’ Club of New South Wales
31 Killarney Drive Killarney Heights NSW 
2087 Australia

Royal Automobile Club of Australia
89 Macquarie Street, Sydney NSW 2000 
Australia

Tattersalls Club
181 Elizabeth Street, Sydney NSW 2000 
Australia

The Rugby Club
Rugby Place, Off 31 Pitt St Sydney 2000 
Australia

Western Australia

Perth & Tattersalls Bowling & 
Recreation Club
2 Plain Street, East Perth WA 6004 
Australia

Royal King’s Park Tennis Club (Inc)
King’s Park Road, West Perth, WA 6005 
Australia

Rugby Union Club (Rugby WA – Western 
Australian Rugby Union (Inc))
203 Underwood Ave, Floreat WA 6014 
Australia

Scarborough Sportsmen’s Club
75 Deanmore Road Scarborough WA 
Australia

The Western Australian Club (Inc.)
The Penthouse, Level 11, 12 St George’s 
Terrace PERTH WA 6000 Australia

Western Australian Cricket Association 
(Inc.)
WACA Administration WACA Ground, 
Nelson Crescent, East Perth, Gate 2 
Australia

AUSTRIA

St. Johanns Club 11-May-12
A-1010 Wein, Schubertring 4, Vienna, 
Austria 

BANGLADESH

Dhaka Club Ltd*
Ramna Dhaka-1000 Bangladesh

BRUNEI DARUSSALAM

Royal Brunei Yacht Club
Simpang 664, Km 7, Jalan Kota Batu, 
Bandar Seri Begawan Brunei Darussalam

Panaga Club
c/o Brunei Shell Petroleum Co. Sdn. Bhd. 
Seria KB3534, Negara Brunei Darussalam

CANADA

The National Club
303 Bay Street Toronto, Ontario M5H 2R1 
Canada

Toronto Cricket Skating and Curling Club
141 Wilson Avenue Toronto, Ontario M5M 
3A3, Canada

Hollyburn Country Club
950 Cross Creek Road, West Vancouver, 
BC V7S2S5, Canada

FRANCE

Automobile Club de France
6-8 Place De La Concorde 75008 Paris 
France

GERMANY

Hamburg

The Anglo German Club
Harvestehuder Weg 44 20149 Hamburg, 
Germany

HONG KONG

Craigengower Cricket Club
188 Wong Nai Chung Road, Happy Valley, 
Hong Kong

Hong Kong Cricket Club
137 Wong Nai Chung Gap Road, Hong 
Kong

Hong Kong Football Club
3 Sports Road, Happy Valley, Hong Kong

The Foreign Correspondents’ Club, 
Hong Kong
2 Lower Albert Road Central Hong Kong

Kowloon Bowling Green Club
123 Austin Road, Kowloon Hong Kong

Kowloon Cricket Club
10 Cox’s Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong

RECIPROCAL CLUBS

RECIPROCAL CLUBS
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INDIA

Bangalore

Bangalore Club
Field Marshal K.M. Cariappa Road, 
Bangalore 560025, India

Chennai

Madras Cricket Club
No. 1 Babu Jagjivan Ram Salai Chepauk 
Chennai Tamil Nadu India 600 005

Jodhpur

Umed Club
Old Public Park Road, Near Gaushala 
Grounds, Jodhpur (Rajasthan) 342006, 
India

Kolkata

The Bengal Rowing Club
13/2, Baroj Road Rabindra Sarobar 
Kolkata – 700 029 India

The Calcutta Racket Club
95, Jawahar Lal Nehru Road, 
Kolkata-700071 India

Calcutta Cricket & Football Club
19/1 Gurusaday Road, Kolkata 700019 
India

Mumbai

Bombay Gymkhana Club
M G Road, Fort, Mumbai 400 001 India

Cricket Club of India
J N Tata Pavilion, Brabourne Stadium 
Dinshaw Vachha Road Mumbai 400 020 
India

New Delhi

Delhi Gymkhana Club
2 Safdarjung Road New Delhi 110 011 
India

The Palms Town & Country Club
B Block, Sushant Lok, Phase I, Gurgaon – 
122001, India

Pune

Poona Club Ltd
6 Bund Garden Road, Pune 411001 India

Deccan Gymkhana
Talim Pavilion, 759/2 Deccan Gymkhana, 
Pune 411004 India

Rajasthan

Jaisal Club
Jethwai Road, Jaisalmer – 345 001 
Rajasthan India

INDONESIA

International Sport Club of Indonesia 
(ISCI)
Jl. Ciputat Raya No. 2 Tangerang 15419, 
Indonesia

Mercantile Athletic Club
Jl. Jenderal Sudirman Kav 29-31 Jakarta 
12920 Indonesia

ITALY

Circolo Canottieri Aniene A.S.D
Lungotevere dell’Acqua Acetosa, 119, 
Roma Italy

JAPAN

Kobe Regatta and Athletic Club
1-20, 2-chome, Hachiman-dori 2-Chuo-
ku, Kobe 651-0085 Japan

Yokohama Country and Athletic Club
11-1 Yaguchidai, Naka-ku, Yokohama, 
231-8684 Japan

KENYA (EAST AFRICA)

Nairobi Gymkhana Club
P.O.BOX 30171-00100 GPO, Nairobi, 
Kenya

MALAYSIA

Kluang

Kluang Country Club
Jalan Mengkibol 86000 Kluang Johor
Tel. No.: 607-771 8840
Fax No.: 607-772 1503

Kelantan

Kelantan Golf & Country Club 
(formerly Royal Kelantan Club)
Pengkalan Chepa 16100 Kota Bharu, 
Kelantan, Malaysia
Tel. No.: 60-9-774-7474, 60-9-7482-102
Fax No.: 60-9-747-2918

Melaka

The Malacca Club*
No.18, 5th Floor, Jalan Syed Abdul Aziz, 
75000 Melaka, Malaysia

Negeri Sembilan

Royal Port Dickson Yacht Club
Batu 4 ½ Mile Jalan Pantai, 71050 Sirusa, 
Negeri Sembilan, Malaysia

Royal Sungei Ujong Club
2A Jalan Dato’ Klana Ma’amor, Malaysia

Pahang

Kelab Kuantan (Kuantan Club)
Jalan Merdeka 25000 Kuantan, Pahang, 
Malaysia

Penang

Penang Club
42B, Jalan Sultan Ahmad Shah, 10050 
Penang, Malaysia

Kelab Sukan Pulau Pinang (Penang 
Sports Club)
Jalan Utama 10450 Penang, Malaysia

Kelab Renang Pulau Pinang (Penang 
Swimming Club)
517 Tanjung Bungah 11200 Penang, 
Malaysia

Perak

Royal Ipoh Club
Jalan Panglima Bukit Gantang Wahab, 
30700 Ipoh, Perak, Malaysia

Sabah

The Kinabalu Club
1 Jalan Padang, Peti Surat No.10318, 
88803 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia

Sandakan Recreation Club
Ground Floor, Block 60, Jalan Singapore 
90000 Sandakan, Malaysia

Sarawak

The Island Club
Jalan Airport 96000 Sibu, Sarawak, 
Malaysia

The Sarawak Club
Lot 4954 Blok 26 MTLD Kota Samarahan 
Expressway 93400 Kota Samarahan 
Sarawak, Malaysia

Selangor

Kelab Taman Perdana Diraja Kuala 
Lumpur (Royal Lake Club)
Taman Tasek Perdana, Jalan 
Cenderamulia, Off Jalan Parlimen, 50480 
Kuala Lumpur, Selangor, Malaysia

The Royal Commonwealth Society*
No. 4 Jalan Birah, Damansara Heights, 
50490 Kuala Lumpur, Selangor, Malaysia

Royal Selangor Club
Jalan Raja, 50050 Kuala Lumpur Selangor, 
Malaysia

Royal Klang Club
No. 7, Jalan Istana, 41000 Klang, 
Selangor, Malaysia
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MAURITIUS

Mauritius Gymkhana Club
Suffolk Road, Vacoas, Republic of 
Mauritius

THE NETHERLANDS

Nieuwe of Litteraire Societeit De Witte
Plein 24, 2511 CS The Hague, Netherlands

NEW ZEALAND

Auckland

The Northern Club
19 Princess Street, Auckland, New 
Zealand

Wellington

The Wellington Club
Level 4, 88 The Terrace, Wellington 6011 
New Zealand

PAPUA NEW GUINEA

Aviat Social and Sporting Club
Aviat Street Konedobu Port Moresby PNG

PHILIPPINES

The Manila Club
c/o ELKS Club 7th Floor Corinthian Plaza 
121 Paseo de Roxas, Legaspi Village 1229 
Makati City, Philippines

SOUTH AFRICA

Bryanston

Bryanston Country Club
62 Bryanston Drive Bryanston Sandton 
Gauteng 2021, South Africa

Cape Town

Kelvin Grove Club
144 Campground Road, Newlands, 7700 
South Africa

Durban

Durban Country Club
Isaiah Ntshangase Road Durban South 
Africa

Johannesburg

The Wanderers Club
21 North Street, Illovo, Johannesburg 
2196 South Africa

SPAIN

Real Club de Polo de Barcelona
Avda. Dr. Marañón 17-31 08028-Barcelona 
Spain

SRI LANKA

Colombo Swimming Club
148, Storm Lodge, Galle Road, Colombo 
03, Sri Lanka

Gymkhana Club
31 Maitland Crescent, Colombo 7 Sri Lanka

Singhalese Sports Club
No. 35 Maitland Place Colombo 7 Sri Lanka

SWEDEN

Sallskapet
Arsenalsgatan 7 SE-111 47 Stockholm 
Sweden

THAILAND

Bangkok

The British Club
189 Suriwongse Road Bangrak Bangkok 
10500 Thailand

Royal Bangkok Sports Club
1 Henri Dunant Street, Pathumwan 
Bangkok 10330, Thailand

Chiangmai

Chiangmai Gymkhana Club
349 Chiang Mai – Lamphun Road, Chiang 
Mai 50000 Thailand

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

The Club
PO Box 658, Abu Dhabi, UAE

UNITED KINGDOM

Army and Navy Club
36-39 Pall Mall, London, SW1Y 5JN 
United Kingdom

City University Club
50 Cornhill, London EC3V 3PD United 
Kingdom

Marylebone Cricket Club
Lord’s Cricket Ground, St John’s Wood, 
London NW8 8QN United Kingdom

National Liberal Club
Whitehall Place London SW1A 2HE United 
Kingdom

Oriental Club
Stratford House, Stratford Place, London 
W1C 1ES United Kingdom

Royal Overseas League
Over-Seas House, Park Place, St. James’s 
Street, London Sw1A 1LR United Kingdom

St James’s Club
7-8 Park Place, St. James’s London, 
SW1A 1LS United Kingdom

The Cardiff And County Club
Westgate Street, Cardiff CF10 1DA United 
Kingdom

United Club
3 Church Street Saint Helier Jersey JE2 
3NN United Kingdom

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

Massachusetts

Algonquin Club of Boston
217 Commonwealth Avenue Boston, MA 
02116, USA

California

The Balboa Bay Club
1221 Coast Highway, Newport Beach, CA 
92663 USA

Maryland

Maryland Club
1 East Eager Street Baltimore, Maryland 
21202 USA

New York

Down Town Association
60 Pine Street, New York, NY 10005 USA

Florida

Fisher Island Club
One Fisher Island Drive/Fisher Island 
Florida 33109 USA



1880 – 1881 Louis J R Glass 

1882 Charles Stringer 

1883 Sir Cecil Clementi Smith, CMG 

1884 - 1887 Sir John Anderson 

1888 A P Talbot 

1889 – 1891 Charles Stringer 

1892 A P Talbot 

1893 – 1895 Major Sir Henry E McCallum, CMG 

1896 J J H Orman 

1897 – 1898 Justice Andrew John Leach 

1899 – 1900 Charles Stringer 

1901 Sir Hugh Fort 

1902 – 1903 Sir Frank Athelstane Swettenham, CMG 

1904 Sir Hugh Fort 

1905 Lieutenant-Colonel E G Broadrick 

1906 Sir Hugh Fort 

1907 – 1908 Sir John Anderson 

1909 – 1910 Sir Arthur Henderson Young, KCMG 

1911 Lieutenant-Colonel E G Broadrick 

1912 – 1914 Cedric I Carver 

1915 Charles William Darbishire 

1916 – 1918 Cedric I Carver 

1919 D Y Perkins 

1920 William Langham-Carter 

1921 – 1922 Sir William Murison, KTB 

1923 – 1929 Ron John Farrer, CMG 

1930 Oswald Phillips Griffith-Jones 

1931 – 1932 Charles Salter 

1933 – 1934 Oswald Phillips Griffith-Jones 

1935 – 1937 John Middleton Sime 

1938 – 1939 Bernard E Ablitt 

1940 – 1941 John Athelstan Dean 

1942 / 1945 Club Closed (Pacific War) 

1946 Oswald W Gilmour 

1947 – 1948 Andrew Gilmour 

1949 Andrew Gilmour, CMG 

1950 Robert Donald Stewart 

1951 Peter M B C Frend 

1952 – 1953 H F Clements 

1954 – 1955 L A Williams 

1956 L L Cooper 

1957 John S Kirkham 

1958 J S Kirkham / H K Franklin 

1959 Joseph W Cashin 

1960 David I Price 

1961 O H R Beadles, OBE 

1962 – 1967 Andrew Gilmour, CMG 

1968 Derek R Reid, MC 

1969 Derek R Reid, MC/Alistair B McPherson 

1970 – 1972 Alistair B McPherson 

1973 – 1975 Tom Eames Hughes, CBE 

1976 – 1977 Justice T S Sinnathuray 

1978 Justice T S Sinnathuray / Neill B Aitken 

1979 – 1980 Neill B Aitken 

1981 – 1985 Haider M Sithawalla 

1986 – 1990 Len F Foster 

1991 – 2000 Charlie K P Phua 

2001 – 2008 Anwarul Haque 

2008 Abu Omar

2008 – 2010 Teh Leong 

2011 Mohan J Bhojwani

2012 – 2013 Col (Retd) Gurcharan Singh

Apr – Aug 2014 A. Michael Grice

Sep 2014 – Apr 2015 Mohan J Bhojwani

2015 Capt. Baldev Singh

PAST PRESIDENTS

Although the Singapore Cricket Club was founded in 1852, 
until 1880 the principal office was that of Captain.
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